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Good Energy - 2015 highlights

Revenue

| Compound annuat growth
over five years 26%

£70m -

01 2012 013 2014 2013

paT

Compound annual growth
over five years -29%

L35 -
£3m
£22m

£2mn 4

201 2012 2613 2014 2013

Financial summary

4 Revenue increased 12% to £64 3m

Gross profit EBITDA

Cormpound annual growth Compound annual growth
over five years 27% over five years 42%

EL5M - EHM -

oM 2002 2012 2014 2015 200 2oiz 201} 2014 2048

EHITDA Is ¢ alt ulated uaing operating profit
betore exceptional costs

Non current assets

Compound annual growth
over five years 37%

EJOm -

Lobm

£50m

+ Gross profit increased by 13% to £21 3m

4 EBITDAIncreased by 28% to £73m

& Profit before tax of £01m

2001 2012 2013 086 IOIS

¢ Cashbalance £4 Bm
¢+ Net debt £54 Om
& Basic (loss) / earnings per share (1 4p)

¢ Total dividend for the year maintained at 3 3p
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Good Energy continues to
¢ Flectnclly customernumbers grew 32% facus on building its customer
base and delivering excellent
customer service.

¢ 0Gas customer numbers rose 55% to 38,800

# Feed-In Tanff administration sites grew 48%
to more than 112,600
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Generation & Development

4 Four solar farms completed and commssioned —
Rook Wood and Lower End (Wittshire), Carloggas
(Cornwall) and Crossroads (Dorset) with a total
combined capacity of 23MW

4+ Total solar gutput at year end was 23 3GWh
4 Total number of owned and operated solar
farms at year end was six - with a total capacity

of 30MW

# Aseventh solar farm, Oaklands (Dorset) went
live in early Januvary 2016

& Planning permission for three additional solar
sites was recewved in January 2016

&+ Wind farm installed capacity at year end was
17 5MwW

¢ Total wind farm output during 2015 was
53 3GwWh

SIUBWIIR)S |Bi2UBUl4

+ Totalinstalled capacity at year end was 47 5MW

¢ The combined output of Good Energy’s wind
and solar sites was 76 6MWh - enough to power Hampote wind farm near Doncaster
around 19,135 average homes
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Our Strategic Report for 2015 contains contnbutions from Good Energy’s
Chairman, its Chief Executive and 1its Chief Financial Qfficer, in addition to a
strategic review Detailed financial information and data can be found in later

sections of the document

Chairman’s Statement

Good Energy's strategic objectives for 2015 were
to grow Its customer base, to continue to invest in
renewable generation capacity and to diversify its
funding stream to support this investment

In 2015, overall customer numbers grew by 4 4% and
Good Energy invested In bringing four new solar sites
on stream, making a total as at year end of six It also
drew down £18 6rn of funding from its debt facllity to
support the development of these generation assets

The company delivered profit befare tax of £128k, in
line with expectations

There was cansiderable focus on the renewable
energy sector In the UK during the year The Pans
climate summit in December 2015 demonstrated
a renewed commitment by all participating
governments to take action to address climate
change

At the same time, the UK has seen demand for
renewable energy grow year on year Nearly a quarter
of the country’'s electricity needs are now belng

met by renewable sources such as wind and solar

- evidence that there is a clear growth market for
renewable energy m the medium to long term

Good Energy, which was set up more than 15
years ago, continues to offer a proven blueprint
for a commercially viable and sustainable 100%
renewable power supply and generation business

2015 saw a number of changes to UK energy

policy and subsidy landscape which negatively
impacted plans for wind and solar development and
generation It was also the UK's warmest year on
record resulting in decreased energy usage

However, as a vertically integrated utility bustness
both generating and supplying renewable
electricity, Good Energy is well placed to deal
with such challenges

Strategic Report 6 -17

There 1s evidence of a strong
growth market for renewables
In the medium to long term.

In September, it announced Its new strategic focus
and five-year business plan This s designed to
deliver the company's growth target of a five-

fold increase in customer numbers (household
eguivalents) from a total of 176,500 as at June 2015
to approximately 900,000 as at 31 December 2020
This will enable Goaod Energy to leverage scale from
1its operating model in order to deliver sustainable,
profitable growth

The strategy focuses on four key areas

& Improving efficiency

# Investing in technology to improve
customer expenence

* Developing new and differentiated propositions
for domestic and business customers

¢ |dentifying scaleable acquisition channels

SR

Qur dividend policy remains inline with our
objective to continue to balance an appropriate
return to shareholders with continued investrment
in the business.

The Directors recomymend a final dividend of 2.3p
per share {2014: 2.3p). The dividend has been
maintained, subject to approval at the company’s
AGM.

Chairman’s Statement
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Good Energy's ethical approach and focus on
excellent service has been a conslistent driver of
both customer growth and retention I'm pleased
to report that the company scored an impressive
81% in the latest Which? energy company customer
satisfaction survey, putting it in second place,
Just one percentage point behind the leader The
company has consistently secured flrst or second
ptacein each of the last five years Atthe same
time, Good Energy has topped the three most
recent Martin Lew|s MoneySavingExpert energy
company polls

Matters of sustainability and corporate social
responstbility are becocrming increasingly important
for businesses, and Good Energy received new
accreditation dunng the year for Its brand promise
of deliverning 100% renewable electnicity to its
customers Renewable energy supplies are becoming
of increasing Importance to the business sector The
company is ctearly in a strong position to respond

to this, backed up by independent accreditation
This presents the company with a promising
commercial opportunmty

A founder member of the Social Stock Exchange,
Good Energy Is now dual isted on the soclal impact
segment of the ISDX, having successfutly completed
a social impact report and passed the high
standards set by iIndependent auditors

Durnng the year, the company further invested in

1ts management team and leadership capability,
bringing new people on board with a broad range

of skills and expenence The benefits of this
additional strength are already being felt across

the business in addition, the company is proposing
to Introduce a long term incentive plan (LT!P) for the
Executive tearn

11
The business sector presents

a promising commercat
opportunity for us.

All these factors provide a good foundation from
which to support the company's ambitions for
growth There has been an encouraging start to
2016, with planning permission received for three
solar farms, and continued momentum In customer
growth This gives confidence in the outlook for the
remainder of the year

{ would like to set on record my thanks to everyone
at Good Energy for all their hard work and
dedicaticn throughout what has undoubtedly been a
challenging year

Thanks to ther commitment, the company has been
able to continue to deliver strong customer growth
and offer great levels of service

I would also ke to thank all our customers for their
support and commitment in helping us to address
climate change

Gooed Energy commissioned four new solar tanms during 2015

e

Chairman
N Aprl 2016

John Malthy
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Strategic Review

As noted in the company’s 2015 intenm report, Good
Energy has undertaken a strategic review and set out
clear pricnties for the next five years

The company sees strong prospects for growth

In the renewables sector as evidenced by the
momentum achieved at the 2015 Paris cimate talks,
where governments around the world united in their
commitment to tackle climate change

The challenge of delivering a climate change
programme that keeps to the agreed pathway
presents a major rsk to the balance sheets of some
of the world's largest companies The Governor of
the Bank of England has noted that the vast majonty
of reserves are ‘unburnable If global temperature
rises are to be limirted As a result fossil fuel assets
such as coal, ol and gas are Likely to continue to
devalue as comparies write down their reserves to
reflect useable amounts

At the same time, in the UK, there has been steady
year on year growth in renewable generation
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Renewable electricity capacity as al end Q3 2015
Source Department of Fnergy & Clirnate Change

Good Energy 1s looking to deliver growth across both
its domestic and business customer bases, targeting
a flve-fold increase in customer numbers (household
equivalents) to approximately S00,000 by 31
December 2020

It seeks to achleve this by delivering Improved

efficiency, Investing in technology to improve
customer experience, developing new and

Strategic Report 617

differentiated propositions for domestic and
business customers, and identifying scalable
acquisition channels

In the business sector, Good Energy will pursue
significant growth drniven by corporate social
respansibility requirements and carbon
reduction commitments

The focus on the domestic sector will be to drive
dowrn the cost to serve and Introduce enhariced
digital technology which will deliver a better
experience for customers

Similarly 1t will target efficiencies Inits Feed-m Tanff
{FIT) business and explore new opportunities for
solar and battery storage

The focus on generation will shift to wind power in
the medium term In the longer term, Good Energy
will seek new iInvestment oppertunities in the hydro
and tidal sectors

The company will also seek to secure access to
long term supplies of renewable electricity through
growing its network of power purchase agreements
Good Energy recognises the important role that
innovation has to play in helping it meet its targets,
and will continue to explore the potential offered by
peer-to-peer energy trading in the form of its Piclo
tnal. and battery storage solutions

As part of this approach, the company plans to
launch a new ‘green gas’ product dunng Apnt
2016, which will further differentiate 1t from

Its competitors

The new five-year strategy will support Good
Energy's focus on targeting the delivery of
sustainable, profitable growth

Although there are rnisks and uncertainties Good
Energy benefits from its vertically integrated
structure and has rebust plans in place to manage
and mitigate these wherever possible Further
details on risks and uncertalnties can be found in the
Directors’ Report on page 23

Strategic Review
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Investments

Good Energy continues to make strateglc
Investments to underpin growth mn its supply
business and maintain its ability to capitalise on
the long-term growth opportunity that exists
During 2015, this included investment in people and
processes within our customer operations area

For example, a new smart phone ‘app’ was launched
to help customers take and submit meter readings
At the same time, the company has introduced a
new on-line portal, enabling customers to opt for
on-line illing submit meter readings or activate
other services

2015 also saw the company’s first successful ‘clean
energy’ coltective switch which delivered just under
10,000 new domestic customers, nearly BO% of
which are dual fuel It has also continued to Invest
in the planning and development of new generation
projects with four solar farms coming on stream in
2015 A further three receved planning permission
earlyin 2016

Ptanned investment for 2016 includes a new hilling
systern, and enhancements tc existing processes
and systems

Key Performance Indicators

Good Energy uses a range of performance indicators
(KPIs) ta meritor business performance in four kay
areas ~ Customer, Qperational, Financial and People
As part of the strategic review undertaken in 2015,
enhancements were made to these metrics to align
them to the delivery of the company's five year plan

The strategic KPIs are reported to the Board,
Executive and Heads of Function on a monthly

basts with lead and lag success indicators reported
more frequently within the business This enables
consistency of reporting at all levels and provides a
balanced overview of the health and perfermance of
the company

Customers

Good Energy continues to focus on buillding its
customer base and delivering high quality
customer service

Good Energy menitors KPIs which wlll support the
delivery of its customer strategy, including customer
growth, and customer churn and retention 2016
will see the introduction of three additional KPIs to
measure customer satisfaction, competitiveness
and brand awareness

Operational
Supply

Good Energy's operational strategy for its supply
businesses Is to drive efficiency whilst delivering a
great customer experience Primary operational KPIs
are ‘cost to serve' for existing supply customers and
‘cost to acquire’ for new supply customers

The customer is at the heart of the company’s
enhancements to its systems, processes and staff
tralning and this ensures cost to serve reductions are
managed alongside continual improvements in the
whole Good Energy customer experience

Good Energy also momtors the cost of power from
the market and from the company’s own generation
assets to understand the effectiveness of its energy
procurement approach

Generation

Iits generation business goal is to maximise efficlency
and return on investment across its portfolio of wind
and solar sites Performance will be measured by
availabihity - the % of time each site is avallable

to generate

Customer KPIs Strategic goal 2015 2014
Customer Toincrease the number of customers 44% 34%
growth (all supplied with renewabile electricity and

supply to grow revenue

customers) o

Customer To develop a campelling proposition <B% <8%
churn that enables long term customer

retentfon
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Across the company

Two further operational KPls, introduced early in
2016 will have an impact across Good Energy
One will measure the equivalent emissions of
its activitles

The second will monitor the effectiveness of its
risk management processes

Financial Performance

The company s financial performance Is of
fundamental importance to all stakeholders Good
Energy's main objectives are to delivar growth

in profit and value and to ensure it Is adequately
funded to meet its on-going requirements and long
term objectives The business monitors growthin
revenue gross margin and overhead costs to support
the delivery of its financial targets

The funding strategy of the business Is also reviewed
on a regular basis to ensure that both the cost of
funding and the balance hetween debt and equity
funding are appropnate for the business and provide
the foundation to support its future growth plans

People

The Executive team is focused on developing the
culture of Good Energy 1n a way which enables it
to attract and retain employees with the nght
skills, knowledge and mind-set to help deliver its
growth plans

To achieve this, the company has invested ina
programme to embed i1ts core values into its people
management processes Thisis supperted by an

Financlal KPls Strategic goal

Revenue 1
growth (%%}

improved learming and developrment programme and
company reward strategy

Additional KPIs introduced in 2015 included employee
engagement and employee retention Employee
engagement 1s measured company-wide on an annual
basis The first set of resuits, collected in Q4 2015,
showed an engagement score of 78%, which 1san
extremely strong result for the organisation’s first
formal engagement survey The highest performing
businesses industry-wide aim for a score of 80%

or higher

Employee retention s also animportant enabler of the
company's growth plans, ensunng the business can
retain the shkills and knowledge 1t requires By iInvesting
in employee development and encouraging internal
promotions, Good Energy aims to offer employees
longer term career growth opportunities

To support the company's ambition for continued
growth, investment in people, capability development
and systems during the yearwas maintamned This
investment enabled the company to hire a number

of new senior roles, bringing in additional skills to
ensure it 15 able to respond effectively to maximise the
business growth opportunities

Good Energy continues to Invest In the
skills and capabillties of Its people

2015 2014

To generate strong revenue growth  12% 43%
in lime with customer growth

Gross margin To deliver the night level of 33% 33%
(%) contribution to overheads,

investment and shareholder returns

whilst maintaining attractive prices

for our customers
Administration 2 To grow administration costs at 14% S4%
cost a lower rate than gross margin

growth (%)

enabling contribution to deliver

against a wider range of targets

1 2014 revenue included £10 Im from the sale of West Raynham

2 Excludes depreciation and marketing costs

Strategic Report 6-17
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Good Energy continues
to work with like-minded
partners mcludmg theEden
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Chief Executive’s
Review

2015 was a year of political change and uncertainty
for the renewable energy iIndustry Throughout

this period Good Energy demonstrated thatas a
business It 1s both flexible and responsive to change,
while it continues to grow 1t has delivered a year end
performance In line with expectations

In the autumn of 2015, Good Energy announced a
renewed five-year strategy for profitable growth
setting out iIts future customer growth targets

Its goalis to have 900 000 domestic customers
{household equivalents) by 2020

This growth path will enable the company to
further pursue its mission to tackle climate change,
capitalising on the strengths of its vertically
integrated supply and asset business maodel, and
using its approach to innovation to gain market
share whilst growing profitably

Supply

Good Energy's electrnicity gas and Feed-in Tanff
{FIT) custorner numbers continued to show strong
growth with 219 400 in total by 31 December 2015
(2014 152,500) The company’s domestic supply
base recelved a major boost as a result of winning
the Blg Deal clean energy collective switch in the
autumn and by 31 Decemnber 2015, total etectricity
custemers numbers had risen by 32% to 68,000
{2014 51,500)

Gas custorner numbers rose by 55% to 38,800
{2014 25,000) while there was a 4B%rrise In FIT

customer numbers to 112,600 (2014 76,000)
Business sales revenue grew 30% dunng the year
{2014 2204}, reflecting a number of factors including
a year on year improved competitive pricing position,
rising brand awareness through avenues such as
social media and increased interest in corporate
social responsibility The number of sites supplied
almost doubled, while the amount of power
delivered to business customers grew by more

than $2%

These figures reflect Good Energy’s record of
consistent year on year growth in customer numbers
and reflact the ongoing investment in customer
service, staff, and back cffice systems Third-party
endorsements from Which? and MoneySavingExpert
have also helped drive customer growth and

high levels of customer retention, along with
endorsements from organisattons such as Ethical
Company Qrganisation, the Good Shopping Guide
and the Soclal Stock Exchange

Generation & development

During the year, the company also continued to
invest in its pipeline of generation sites Four solar
farms were built and commissioned durning the
12-month peried, bringing the total number of
owned and operated solar sites ta six, with a
combined installed capacity of 30MW

Construction of a seventh SMW solar farm
began duning the last quarter of 2015 and the
site Is now 'live’

The solar panels installad at Good Energy 5 Caklands sclar farm In Dorset are

Strategic Report 6-17

designed to foltow the contours of the land

Chief Executive’s Review
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Planning consent for a further three sites was
received early In 2016 These sites will be developed
to balance appropnate returns on the company’s
assets with an objective of securing access to

long term renewable electricity to support
customer growth

Qutput from its two wind farms at Delabole
{Cornwall) and Hampole (Yorkshire) during the fulf
year totalled 53 3GWh, up 38% (2014 38 7GWh}
Work continued in 2015 on two new wind farm
projects - one In Scotland and one in Cornwall -
which together could power tens of thousands

of homes

Good Energy continues to review Its ongoing strategy
on asset development in light of the Government’s
review of renewable energy policy As part of

this, the company has taken the deciston to write

off £575k of early-stage development costsona
nurmber of small sites which are now unable to
progress, reduce the size of the development team,
redeploying staff into other business roles where
appropriate and reviewing the on-going focus

As a result, the team will now concentrate on Good
Energy’'s existing portfolio, and consider what
development plans the company will explore in 2017
and beyond

The company invested in a new finance system
during the year to facilitate ymproved internal
reporting and as an angoing driver to reduce costs
as the organisation continues to grow It also rolled
out a new on-line portal, which more than 25% of
the customer base has already signed up to A new
meter reading ‘app’ was also unveiled, which

Is supporting the company to produce regular
accurate bills

The company has grown considerably since its
creation and 2015 was a year of particularly strong
expansion It now employs more than 300 staff at its
Chippenham, Wiltshire offices and this figure 1s set to
risen 2016

10 10 Solar School winners receive their prize cheque 10 help boost
thair solar panet fund raising campaign

(11
The average Good Energy
electncity customer saved 1.12
tonnes of carbon in 2015.

A project to refresh and further embed the
company's core values across the organisation was
rolled out during the year This has provided the
framework to help all employees maximise their
potential and successfully deliver the company’s
strategy and objectives The work on this has been
reflected in relatively high employee engagement
scores, which compare well with other ugh
performing organisations

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Good Energy has sustainability at the heart of

Its strategy, and as a prograssive business, it
understands that its role In society 1s far more than
just delivering profit It is committed to using its
business as a force for good

The company continued to make a positive impact
on addressing climate change during the year it
added four new solar farms to its portfolio by the
year end, increasing the amount of renewabte
electricity generatlon

An increasing number of customers also opted to
buy the company's 100% renewable electricity,
enabling each individual to reduce their carbhon
footprint The average Good Energy electricity
customer saved 112 tonnes of carbon last year by
belng 100% renewable - the equivalent of not driving
5,700 miles As generation and usage of renewable
electriceity Increases, thisin turn reduces the reliance
on fossil fuels and energy imports

The company will shortly be releasing its first
Sustainability Report, which addresses and refreshes
the company’s approach to CSR and associated
reporting Good Energy 1s a founder rnember of the
Socaial Stock Exchange and at the end of the year,
was dual listed on the social impact segment of the
ISDX Growth Market

The company has continued to bulld upon its work
with a range of like-minded partners during the year,
including the Soll Association, Friends of the Earth,
1010 Solar Scheols and the Eden Project in the
fourth quarter, the company also further cermmented
its relationshlp with the National Trust, and will now
be the chanty's energy partner for an additional

two years
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The company rermains committed to supporting

and working with local communities so that they

can benefit from its wind and solar development
activities, and has set up community funds alongside
each of the new sclar farms it commussioned during
the year The local tanffs for customers living close
to the company’s two wind farms remain in place
and In August, Delabole residents enjoyed a windfall
payment to reflect the high performance of the site’s
four turbines

Good Energy believes that innovation and
technology will play a vital role in helping the UK
move towards a future powered exclusively by
renewables Work on battery storage and peer-to-
peer trading whichit undertook during 2015 and will
continue to explore, witt help the company develop
new 100% renewable solutions These will play an
important role in helping the drive to reduce carbon
ermissions in the future

L.ooking ahead

Good Energy believes there is real potential for it to
take full advantage of the long-term opporturuty
as the UK begins to embrace a new decentralised,
low carbon energy market Since 2010, more than
one million homes are now producing power in their
own homes from sustainable sources of energy,
and in 2015 In quarter two alone, renewable energy
provided over 25% of the UK's etectriclty Good
£nergy is at the heart of this change, and has the
nght long-term proposition, the right experience
and a proven strategic approach to dellver growth
going farward

The business sector wil! be a focus for Good Energy
in 2016 and beyond For example, the comrmitments
of the RE100, a collabaration of the world’s most
influential companies which have pledged to work
towards 100% renewable power, play well to Good
Energy’s strengths The company is in an excellent
position to suppert these organisations in their dnive
both to reduce carbon emissions and demonstrate
theirr CSR and carbon credentials to customers

The domestic customer proposition will continue

to develop and huild on the progress maden 2015,
such as the on-line portal and the Goad Energy ‘app’
The company’s long- term vision 1s for the domestic
customer to be the central hub for all sustainable
energy initiatives In the home, and to help consumers
take advantage of a smart-enabled future 1t will
seek to engage with its customers and make it
possible for them to manage and understand their
energy use more effectively than ever before

The company's appreach to its development of
assets will be adapted in the short term to reflect the
impact of government policy It remains optimistic
about the available returns from operational assets
and its ability to secure the long term supply of
renewable electricity required to match growing
customer demand

Good Energy’s customer numbers have risen an
average 36% year on year for the last three years,
demonstrating a clear, consistent record of growth
During 2015 1t has continued to buitd on these strong
foundations already laid and | am confident Good
Energy will be able to both continue to maximise

the opportunities for growth and respond to
changing energy policy throughout the coming

year and beyond

The company s second local tariff applies to
residents ving near Harnpole wind farny

Strategic Report 6-17

Juliet Davenport

Chief Executive
11 April 2016

Chief Executive’s Review
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Chief Financial Officer’s
Review

Financial performance overview

Good Energy’s strategic objectives for 2015 were to
continue to deliver customer growth, improve the
profitability of the supply business and invest in
renewable generation assets

It delivered a profit before tax of £128k which was

1in Line with expectations Revenue grew by 12%,
supported by strong growth in customers up 44% 1n
the supply business and 93% growth in generation
revenue 2014 results included revenue from the
sale of West Raynham Total assets grew by 18% as
a result of continued iInvestment in generation The
company had cash balances of £4 8m at the year
end and borrowing had Increased from £46min
2014 to £62m as further drawdowns were made
from the fIxed rate debt facllity announced at the
end of 2014 to finance the construction of the four
solar farms built and commussioned during 2015,
and to start work on the two new wind farm projects
noted previously

In June Good Energy became the UKs first energy company to
accept a local currency with customers now abie to pay therr
energy bills vsing the Bristol Pound

Revenue grew by 12%,
supported by strong growth In
both customer numbers andn
generation.

Profit before tax and exceptional Items of £128k

was down by £1 2m compared with 2014, despite an
rmprovement of £3 2m PBT in the Supply business
The results for 2014 Included a profit from the sale of
West Raynham of £3 6m The 2015 results included
£113k PBT inrelation to site sales and a wnite-off of
£575k for sites no longer to be developed

Financial performance by segment

The Supply business delivered a profit hefore tax

of £37min 2015, up by £3 2m from 2014 Revenue
grew by 32%, with gross margin flat at 29% Overall
customer numbers grew by 44%, and the business
has benefited from falling power prices, partially
offset by the over-purchase of gas referred to in the
Intenm results

The Supply business benefitted from a non-recurring
credht of £1 Om which arose following the removal
of Levy Exemption Certificates (LECs) announced
by Goevernment with effect from 1 August 2015

Good Energy had purchased LECs In excass of

those needed to ensure compliance with regulatory
requirements for supplylng 100% renewable energy
and had wnitten back this excess cost ta the income
statement The Autumn Statement confirmed

that these LECs could be used up to March 2018 to
offset the cost of Climate Change Levy for business
customers For this reason, the LEC Inventory has
been written back with a corresponding credit to the
income statement

Total administration costs grew by 13%, reflecting
strong cost contral The Supply business generated a
positive cash flow in 2015

The Generation business delivered a toss before

tax of £636k, which was In line with expectations
This reflects the performance of solar sites, which
are cash positive but profit negative in their first few
years and also reflects the removal of the benefit

of LECs from st August 2015 Overall generatlon
revenue grew by 93%
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The Development business reported a loss

before tax of £2 Im This includes the costs of the
development team that cannot be capitalised
against on-golng projects and a write-off of early-
stage development costs on sites that will not

be devetoped As a result of the strategic review
undertaken during the year, the Development team
has been reduced in size going forward to reflect the
change in focus with a reduction in investrnent in
solar development antictpated in the future

Financial position and financing

The long term fixed rate funding facility secured
at the end of 2014 has supported the growth of
£16m of solar assets with an additional four sites
having been completed in 2015 The company has
adopted a prudent approach to drawing down
agalinst this facility in order to optimise the overall
level of borrowings

Good Energy cantlnually reviews the funding
requirements for the business to ensure that it can
meet its strategic growth objectives with appropriate
funding products taking into account the cost of
capital, duration and overall gearing levels

In the autumn, Good Energy announced its new
strategy and growth targets for 2020 There is good
potential for growth in the supply of renewable
energy for both business and domestic customers
and the company continues to Invest to take
advantage of these opportunities

The planned implementation of the biling system
in 2016 and further process improvements (N our
operations teams will deliver reductions in cost to
serve as well as improving customer expenence and
enable the business to deliver Increased profitabllity
as It leverages its cost base

Revenue growth
by segment 2015 2014 % Notes
Supply £605m £457m  +32%  Strong growth in both domestic and
tbusiness customers
Generation £75m £39m +930% Four new solar sites commissioned
inyear and a full year of operation
for existing sites
Development £02m £102m  -98% 204 sale of West Raynham,

2015 sale of small solar site

Dorse

Strategic Report 6-17

Denise Cockrem

Chief Financial Officer
N Aprit 2016

Chief Financial Officer's Review

w
—
=
=7]
—
1]
@,
™
0
13
b=
o
=
—

uoday Sio1auQ

FlUzWZ)e]S JeDUeU

17



18

Good Ener
%Group PLC &Y

Introducing the Good Energy Group PLC Board

Joined Board
October 2012

Responsibilities
Member of Audit and
Risk Committee

Member of Remuneration
Committee

Appointed CEQ
2002

Appointed CFO:
May 2014

John Maitby - Chairman

John holds a number of roles in UK and international companies including
Chairman-elect of Swedish Bank BlueStep, Non-Executive Director of Bank
of Ireland UK, and Non-Executive Director and Chairman of Risk and Audit for
Tandem Bank plc

Previous roles include Chief Executive Officer of wiltiams & Glyn, Semior
Adwvisor to Corsair Capitat, Group Director of the UK commercial bank of
Lloyds Banking Group, Group Chief Executive of Kensington Group plc and
a number of senior executive positions acrass the financial services sector,
including Natwest Group plc, Barclays Bank plc and Abbey National plc

Other directorships

Bank of Ireland (UK) plc
Tandem Bank Ltd

Lunar Investors (Holding) LLP

Juliet Davenport — Chief Executive Officer

Juliet was appointed Chief Executive of Good Energy Group and Good Energy
in 2002 She started her career in renewable energy at Energy for Sustamnable
Development Ltd (ESD) in 1995 and was appointed Executive Director of
both ESD (now CAMCQO) and ESD Ventures Ltd in 1996 Passionate about
renewable energy and 1ts potential to impact on climate change, in 2013 she
was awarded the OBE for services to the sector

Juliet s highly regarded in the renewable energy industry and has held
posttions on many strategic and advisory boards, including DECC's Renewable
Adwisory Board, OFGEM's Environmental Advisory Committee, Ministerial
Smart Metering, and Regen SW She also represents small suppliers on the
remuneration commuttee of Energy UK and Is a councl member of NERC

Denise Cockrem — Chief Finanaial Officer

Denise was appointed Chief Financial Officer in May 2014 Her previous
experience includes senior finance roles In FTSE 100 companies within the
financial services sector Prior to joining Good Energy, Denise was Finance
Director for RSA Insurance Group’s UK & Western Europe region She has
previously worked as Finance Director for Direct Line Insurance, and her
career includes finance roles with Royal Bank of Scotland, Barclays Bank
and Ernst & Young Denise is an FCA, who qualified with Neville Russell
and has an MA from Oxford in Law

Denise 1s also a Trustee on the Board of Macintyre, a charity providing
learning, support and care for more than 900 children and adults with
learning disabilities She is a member of the CBI South West Council and a
Non-Executive Director of Skipton Buillding Society
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Joined Board.
November 2012

Respansibilities.
Member of Audit and
Risk Committee

Member of Remuneration
Committee

Joined Board
June 2000

Responsibilities.
Chairman of Remuneration
Committee

Joined Board
March 2008

Responsibilities:
Chairman of Audit and
Risk Committee

Francesca Ecsery — Non-executive

Francesca is a Portfolio Non-Executive Director with 23+ years’ experience in
directing both blue chip companies and start-ups in the digital, retail, FMCG,
lessure and travel ndustries  She 1s aninvestor in a number of start-ups, acts
as advisor in the leisure, travel retail and digital marketing sectors and1s a
commercial coach to several entrepreneurs Francesca s also the founder and
Director of Advantage Portugal

Previously, Francesca worked as Globat Business Development Director and
UK General Manager at Cheapflights Media She has extensive experience
encompassing consultancy with McKinsey & Co, marketing with PepsiCo, and
general management in a range of blue-chip travel companies

Other directorships:

Marshall Motor Holdings

Advantage Portugal LLP

Foreign & Colonlal Investment Trust ple
Share pl¢

The Share Centre Limited

Sharefunds Limited

VISTA {Logistik Holdings Ltd)

Martin Edwards - Non-executive

Martin was apponted as a director of Good Energy Group at its formation
bringing to the Group valuable knowledge of the renewable generation business
He was instrumental in taking Delabole wind farm ~ the UK's first commercial
wind farm — from concept to completion in the 19905 Detabole wind farm was
acquired by Good Energy Group in 2002 and Martin continued to direct all local
operations, maintenance and contract negotiations associated with it He also
played a key role inimplementing the £i2 million redevelopment of the site
during 2010/71

Other directorships
windelectric Ltd
Windelectric Management Ltd

Rick Squires — Non-executive

Rick holds a number of non-executive board directorships of companies
within the renewable energy sector, including Green Investment Bank
Financial Services and Green Energy For Education Limited

Until 2009, Rick was the Non-Executive Chairman of Eclipse Energy Company
Ltd, a UK-based privately owned wind power company with a development
portfolio of approximately 250Mw Rick 15 atso the founder of PiEnergy Ltd,
He has held semior commercial positions with Royal Duteh Shell Group and
InterGen, a US-based power producer

Other directorships.

UK Green Investrnent Bank Financial Services Limited
Chippenham Rotary and tnner Wheel Trust Limited
PiEnergy Lirmited

Milford Haven Port Authority

Green Energy for Education Ltd
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The Directors submit their report, together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Good Energy Group of compantes, for the year
ended 31 December 2015 This report includes the Corporate Governance
section and the Directors’ responsibility statement

The company is reguired to set out a fair review

of the group's activities and a description of the
prncipal risks and uncertainties facing the business
This requirement includes an analysis of the
development and performance of the company's
business durning the financial year, and the position
of the Group at the end of the reporting period
consistent with 1ts slze and complexity

The Directors’ Report has been prepared and 1s
published in accordance with, and with reliance
upen, applicable English company law and the
llabilities of the Directors in relation to that report are
subject to the imitations and restrictions provided
by such law

Risk Management Approach

Good Energy recognises that effective risk
management is critical to enable it to meet Its
strategic objectives

The Board has overall responsibility for the
company’s nsk management and internal controls
framework The Audit and Risk Committee, under
delegation from the Board, reviews the nature and
extent of risk exposure

The company has a clear framework for identifying
and managing risk, both at an operational and
strategic level its risk identificatlon and mitigation
processes have been designed to be responsive to
the changing envircnment in which it operates The
impact of emerging rnisks on our business model are
also considered and this 1s used to make informed
decisions as we continue to refine our strategy

The Board's review of internal control

The Board retains overall responsibility for the
company's risk management and internal controls
framework Responsibility for reviewing the
effectiveness of internal control is delegated to the
Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk function is responsible for
Good Energy’s risk management activities, and
for provision of 1ts internal audit service As such,
its activities include ensuring the regular review of
internal controls relating to key risks, reporting on
risk events to the Audit and Risk Committee, and
reviewing and testing the effectiveness of internal
controls throgugh audit reviews

In 2015, the Audit and Risk function worked
collaboratively with the business to establish a
control environment - the ‘Guiding Principles’
approach that s appropriate for a fast-growing
business This will help ensure that everyone who
works at Good Energy adheres to a way of workling

together that reflects the company’s ethos In turn,

this will ensure Good Energy employees can make
informed decisions that are in the best interests
of the business and the environment in which

1t operates

The company's registered office and principal place
of business [s;

Monkton Reach
Monkton Hill
Chippenham
Wiltshire SNIS 1EE

The company’s registered number is 04000623,
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Political and regulatory risk- Good Energy faces
a range of political pressures that could potentally
tead to adverse, additional legislation or regulation
for the business

in 2015, this took the form of the removal of
significant levels of renewable support by the
govarnment At the same time the government's
support for nuclear power and the exploitation of
shale gas has increased Good Energy does not
belleve this ts the best solution to long-term energy
securnity and ignores the potential of renewable
technologles Any such changes to regulations or
policies are considered as part of the regular and
continuing review of the Group's operating strategy

Ahead of the June 2016 referendum, public debate
continues about the relative benefits and drawbacks
of the UK’s potential withdrawal from the European
Union Good Energy believes that ‘Brexit’ would lead
to a period of increased regulatory uncertamnty, but
that the company is adaptable and well placed to
meet any regulatory changes

Good Energy believes that Brexit may lead to higher
energy prices for UK households and businesses as
a possible decline in the value of sterling and new
trade tanffs would make imported energy relatively
more expensive

Wholesale market and price volatility- Revenue
from sales of electricity and gas are affected by
fluctuations in wholesale prices and the associated
costs of purchases when market conditions are
volatile Good Energy mitigates this nsk partly
through the benefits of its vertical integration,

and partly via its forward-looking and prudent
hedging pollcy

Good Energy announced one price change in 2015
- a reduction in both its electricity and gas prices
Subsequently in early February 2016, the company
announced a 7 2% gas price drop, effective from 1
Apri 2016

Weather, forecasting demand and generation

On the supply side, temperature drives demand and
customer behaviour From a generation perspective,
the annual vanability of wind speeds and solar
rachation can result In year-to-year volatility Any
matenal reduction could have a conseqguent adverse
impact on financial results and potentially, the future
prospects for the business

Directors’ Report 21~ 34

Accurate forecasting 15 key, in the long term, to
informed hedging and thus mitigating against
adverse market movements, and in the short term
to avoiding imbatance nsk Investment in forecasting
systems has provided Good Energy with a greater
degree of granulanty and a reduction in forecasting
errors related to demand and all forms of generation

Cyber-attack As with many businesses, a
successful cyber-attack on Good Energy’s network
could result In the company being unable tc deliver
service to its customers, potentially damaging its
reputation, and {rading to consequential customer
and revenue loss It could also lead to the Imposition
of financial penalties

Good Energy continually assesses its security
policies, standards and procedures and adjusts them
s0 they are proportionate to the threat profile the
company faces

Data management Good Energy carnes and stores
confidential, personal and cemrmerclally sensitive
information Failure te protect or correctly use

this data could result in unintentional loss of, or
unauthonsed access to, customer data This could
adversely affect Good Energy's reputation and
potentially lead to legal action

Good Energy takes the security of customer data
very seriously It has a mandatory data privacy
programme in place designed to ensure it uses data
i 1ts possession appropriately The programme is
based on existing regulations and reflects the nature
of the data the company possesses

All applications which hold or transmit confidential
personal and commercially sensitive information
Include appropriate security features All staff
undergo data protection tralning to ensure they

are fully aware of thelr roles and responsibilities

in this matter

Financial risk management This has been

considered within note 3 1in the Notes to the
Financial Statements

Dwectors’ Report
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General company information

The Group 1s a public mited company incorporated
in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act
1985, and is listed on the Alternative Investment
Market {AIM) of the London Stock Exchange

The company’s registered office and principal
place of business is Monkton Reach, Monkton Hill,
Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN151EE The company's
reglstered number 1s 04000623

Capital structure

The Group is financed through both equity share
capital and debt instruments

As at 31 December 2015, the company's issued share
capital was 14,970,680 Ordinary Shares of Sp each
Ordinary Shares in the Group carry rights to dividends
and Qrdinary shareholders are entitled to attend and
vote at general meetings

Might falls at Good Enetgy s 1 ower End solar farm in Wiltshire

The company's share register 1s maintained and
managed by Computershare Investor Services PL.C
for which contact details can be found in our Cirectors
and Corporate Resources sectlon on page 91

The company does not have shareholder authornity

to acquire its own shares Clarke Willmott Trust
Corporation Limited holds 521,989 (2014 208,863)
Qrdinary Shares of the company in trust for current
and future benefictanes of the Good Energy Group
Employee Share Option Scheme These are deducted
from equity as shown in the Consolidated and Parent
Company Statements of Changes in Equity

During 2015 the trust disposed of 197 000 (2014
179,135) shares as a result of exercised options
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Significant shareholders

Significant shareholders holding over 3% of the i1ssued share capital as at 31 December 2015, other than any
Directors and then family as defined in the AIM rules, are detalled below

31 December 2015 s:/:r:fcl;s:g 31December 2014 Sx;fé::‘i';‘:
Green Beannie Limited 2,457,457 16.42%0 2,352,597 16 04%
;evia;t::n?e"e’al o217 6 B2% 1,176,471 802%
Schroders PLC 743,874 497% 592,685 4 04%
John Sellers 479,797 320% 588,797 4 01%
Berti Investment Limited 486,318 3 25% 486,318 3 32%
Peter Dixon Edwards 451,098 301% 451,098 3 08%

Directors’ interests and their interests in the company’s shares

Detalls of the company's Directors who served durning the year and up to the date of approval of this report
(unless otherwise stated) are detailed on page 27

The interests (all of which are beneficial unless otherwise stated) of the Directors and therr families as
defined in the AIM Rules In the issued share caprital of the parent company are

31 December 2015 5:: ;2:::3 31December 2014 S:: rzf‘:l::':;
Martin Edwards ? 686,827 4 68% 686,827 4 68%
Juliet Davenport 592,810 4 04% 592,810 4 04%
John Maltby 120,000 0.82% 120,000 0.82%
Richard Squires 36,000 0 25% 36,000 0.25%
Francesca Ecsery 2,400 002% 2,400 0 02%

Notes

1 Certan of the Directors hold share pptions for which details are set out In the Directors Rermuneration Report {on page 31)

2 In addition to the sharehelding of Martin Edwards detalled above his father Peter Dixon Edwards holds 123 450 Ordinary Shares as trustee of 2
discretionary trust under which Martin Eciwards 15 one of the potentlal beneficlaries

Directors’ Report 21~ 34 Directors’ Report
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Directors’ Indemnity Statement

As permitted by the Group's Artictes of Association,
the Directars have the benefit of an indemnity which
15 a quallfying thurd party indemntty provision as
defined by Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006
The iIndemnity was in force throughout the last
financial year and s currently in force The company
also purchased and malntained throughout the
financtal year Directors' and Officers’ bability
Insurance In respect of itself and its Directors

Financial instruments

The Group's financial instryments include bank
loans and other borrowings, a corporate bond,
overdraft and revolving credst facilittes

The principal objective of these instruments Is

to ralse funds for general corporate purposes and
to manage financial risk Further details of these
Instruments are given in Note 22 in the Financial
Statements

Future developments

Detaiis of future developments are given in the Chief
Executive's Overview on page 12

Research and development

Given the nature of the Group's activities it does not
carry out any matenal research and development
work Howaever, the company does invest in small-
scale R&D projects, often grant-funded, as it believes
innovation is key to the future development of its
business proposition

Dividends

Details on 2015 final dividend proposed are givenin
the Chairman's Statement on page 7

Turbines at Gaord Energy s Hampale wind tamm near Doncaster
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Corporate Governance

The Group recognises the importance of good
corporate governance practices The Beard Is famuliar
with the UK Corporate Governance Code, although ttis
not currently required to comply with the Code Inthe
Interests of transparency, the Directors have decided
to provide certain corporate governance disclosures
that would be required of a fully listed company

1oday ndsyells

The Board and its commuttees
Board of Directors

The Board comprises the following individuals

Executive Directors Non-Executive Directors

Non-Executive Charman
of the Board, Member
of the Audit and

Juliet Davenport Chief Executive John Maltby' Risk Management
Committee Member
of the Remuneration
Committee

Chair of the Audit and
Denise Cockram Chief Financial Officer Richard Squires Risk Management
Committee

Chalr of the
Martin Edwards Remuneration
Committee

Member of the Audit
and Risk Management
Francesca Ecsery' Committee Member
of the Remuneration
Committee
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Operations of the Board

The rotes of Chief Executive and Chairman have
always been split, with the Chairman operating in
a Non-Executive capacity The Chief Executive is
responsible for the day-to-day management and
running of the business and Is supported by a
team of senior management including a Chief
Financial Officer, Managing Director, Supply,
Director of Trading & Qrigination and Director of
People & Culture

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there
were seven scheduled Board meetings Additionat
Board meetings were convened when the Board

was requlred to deal with the review and approval of

material matters affecting the Group

The Group's performance 1s reviewed at these

scheduled meetings and the Board is responsible for

agreeing and reviewing the strategy for the Group,
for which it maintains both short term (12 months)
and longer-term plans {five years) In addition, it

is also responsible for matters relating to Director
and employee recruitment and remuneration, audit
and accounting polictes, rsk management, strategy,
trealth and safety and other specific subjects

Directors have the right to request that any concerns

they have are recorded in the appropriate committee

or Board minutes

The Board reviews the operational and financial
results of the Group on a monthly basis against a pre-
agreed set of performance targets operating within

the delegated authonties, which are reviewed annually

by the Board or as and when changes are required

In addition, the Board recewves mformatton obtained
through a system of continvous financial planning
which s used ta better manage profit and cash flow
forecasting, and to inform investment decision-

making The forrnal financial ptan for the forthcoming
year IS set out as a detailed proposition and authorised

by the Board before the end of each year

The Remuneration Committee

The members of the Remuneration Committee are
John Maltby, Francesca Ecsery and Martin Edwards
This committee held three scheduled meetings in
the year ended 31 December 2015 The primary duty
of the Remuneration Committee Is to supervise
and advise the Group's policy In relation to the
remuneration of the Executive Directors and senior
managers of the Group on behalf of the Board

No Director may be involved in any decisions as

to their own remuneration Further details of the
Remuneration Committee and remuneration policy
are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on
pages 31-34

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The members of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee are John Maltby, Richard Squires and
Francesca Ecsery John Maltby 1s considered to have
recent, relevant financial experience The Chief
Executive and Chief Financial Officer are normally
Invited to attend meetings of the Committee The
Committee met four timesin the year ending 31
December 2015

The primary duty of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee is to oversee the accounting and
financial reporting process, the internal accounting
practices, external audit arrangements and
effectiveness of the Group’s nsk management and
internal control system

The Audit and Risk Management Commutiee also
meets at least annually with the Group's external
auditors to review and agree the auditor services
being provided to the Group, including any non-
audit services It also meets with external auditors,
without management bemng present, to discuss
audit process

Risk management and internal control

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's
system of internal controls The responsibility for
reviewing the effectiveness of its internal control
system has been delegated to the Audit and Risk
Management Comnittee, which reviews this on

an annual basis The system of internal controlis
designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives

Going concern

The Group and Board closely monitor and manage
liquidity The Directors have taken account of

the current financiat position of the Group, Its
anticipated future performance and investment
plans in assessing the Group's going concern
status The Directors consider that the Group has
adequate resources to continue In operation for
the foreseeable future and continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the 2015 accounts
Further details on this can be found on page 49




Directors’ responsibilities statement

The Directors are responsible for preparning the
Annual Report and the financal statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare

financial statements for each financial year Under

this law the Directors have prepared the Group
and Parent Company Financial Statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union Under cornpany law, the Directors must not
approve the Financial Statements unless they are
satisfled that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and the company and of
the profit or loss of the Group for that period

I~ e
- I el

L -

=
n"i
<
=
@)
Z
>
P
=i
~
&

ElS

23455

During the year Good Energy announced that Its partnershup with the
Natlonal Trust would contlnue for a further two years

The Orrectors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the company’s transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the company and the Group They must
also ensure that the Financial Statements comply
with the Companles Act 2006 The Directors are
alse responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the company and the Group and hence for taking

reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and otherirregulantles

The Drrectors are responsible for the maintenance
and integrity of the company's website

Note Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of

Financial Statements may differ from legislation in
other junsdictions

]1._ ;11:. 4‘.!’1[ na._.:-..

Select svitable accounting policles and then apply them consistently

Make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

State whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Uinton have been followed, subject to
any materlal departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements

Prepare the financlal statements on the golng concern basis unless it Is inappropriate to presume
that the company and the Group will continue in business

Directors’ Report 21- 34

Directors’ Report

29

yoday 8alens

i
=
D
™
-
[=]
=
m.
0
153
=
(=}
=
—

SIUBWS]EIS [RIDURYIS



30

GoodEner
GroupPLC &y

Referral Arrangements

The company has operated and continues to
aperate referral arrangements with the Liberat
Democrats and the Green Party It considers these
to be commercial arrangements, with a referral
payment made for each customer referred by them
to Good Energy However, the Companies Act 2006
defimitions of the making of political donations or
the incurring of political expenditure are capableof a
wide interpretation In the interests of transparency,
the company obtained shareholder approval for the
referral arrangements at its Annual General Meeting
N 2015 and anticipates requesting that authorisation
be refreshed at the Annual General Meeting in 2016

Disclosure of Information to Auditors

So far as each Director is aware, there Is no relevant
audit information of which the company's auditors
are unaware and each Director has taken ali the
steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Director
In order to make himself/herself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the
company’s auditors are aware of that information

Employees

The Greup's employment polictes follow best
practice based on equal opportunities for alt
employees, irrespective of race, gender, nationality,
colour, sexual gnientation, disabibity, marnital status,
religion or age All decisions reilating to employment
are ohjective, free from bias and based upon work
critena and individual merit

Consultation with employees or therr representatives
has continued at all levels with the aim of ensurning
that views are taken into account when decisions
are made that are likely to affect their interests

and that all employees are aware of the financial
and economic performance of the business
Communication with all employees continues
through a variety of mechanisms, including regular
teamn briefs and twice-yearly off-site all-company
meetings A network of company champions was
established during the year to encourage grassroots
involvermnent and feedback on all aspects of working
for Good Energy

Reappointment of Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP acted as auditors for
the flnancial year to 31 December 2015 A resolution
to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors

will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting

By order of the Board

11 April 2016

Stephen Rosser

Company Secretary
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Directors’
Remuneration Report

Introduction

This report sets out the informatton about the
remuneration of the Directors of the cormpany for the
year ended 31 December 2015 Thrs report has been
prepared in accardance with the requirements for
AlM listed companies set out in the Companies Act
2006 and the AlM rules

Remuneration Committee and policy

Details of the company's Remuneration Commttee
are set out on page 28 The Remuneration
Committee has agreed a remuneration policy to
ensure that the company 1s able to attract, retain
and motwvate its Executive Directors and semor
management

The Group operates in a competitive environment

It therefore sets out to provide competitive
remuneration to all its employees, appropriate to the
business environment and geographical location

The Group aims to align the interests of shareholders
with those of Directors and senior management

by giving the latter the opportunity tobulld up a
shareholding interest in the company In addition, it
|s proposing to introduce a long-term incentive plan
(LTIP) for the Executive team

Service agreements, notice periods and
termination payments

Executive Directors

The service agreements for the Executive Directors
are not for a fixed term and may 1in normal
circumstances be terminated on the notice penods
listed below

Name Position Dateof contract Notice period 2015 5alary £
Juliet Davenport Chief Executive 2 August 2007 9 months 196,809
Denise Cockrem Chief Financial Officer 22 tanuary 204 6 months 182,159

The company reserves the right to pay Executive Directors in lieu of notice

Directors’ Report 21- 34
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Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

The remuneration of the Chalrman of the company
and the Non-Executive Directors consists of fees
that are paid monthly in arrears Sataries are
benchmarked on an annual basis The Chairrnan
and the Non-Executive Directors did not participate
in any bonus scheme or long-term Incentive

reward schemes, nor did they accrue any pension

entitlement Following the publication in August
2015 of HMRC's express confirmation of the travel
rules that apply to non-executive directors, the
company reimburses non-executive directors' travel
expenses between home and the company’s Head
Office

The key terms of the Non-Executives' appointments
are as follows

Name Date of appointment Notice period 2015 Salary £
John Maltby 15 October 2012 3 months 41,303
Richard Squires 28 June 20M 3 months 28,050
Martin Edwards 7 May 2008 3months 24,000
Francesca Ecsery 15 November 2012 3months 20,910

It 15 the Board's policy to allow the Executive Directors to accept directorships of other companies provided

that they have obtained the consent of the Board

The climate 1alks In Paris in 2015 represented a potential turning point in tistory
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Non-Executive Salary/ Pension Benefitsn Total

Chaurnan fees€  Contributions€ kindg AnnualBonusE  ogiee Total 2014 £

John Maltby 41,303 - - - 41,303 40,800

Executive Directors

Juliet Davenport 196,809 23,868 2,063 ml 222,740 252,183

Denise Cockrem 192,159 18,200 1,598 il 211,957 272,129

Garry Peagam®* - - ! - - - 239,026 =
2
=1

Non-Executive n

Directors o
=]
2

Richard Squires 28,050 - - - 28,050 28,050

Martin Edwards 24,000 - - - 24,000 24,000

Francesca Ecsery 20,910 - - - 20,910 33,456

Total 503,21 42,068 3,661 nl 548,960 889,644

*Stepped down as Group Financial Dlrector on 30th April 2014

Directors and managers. 2015 bonus

sale that commenced in 2015 but which could not '5"
No bonus was paid in 2015 to directors or managers be recognised in the financial resuits for that year g
and therefore no cost was included in the 2015 The profit on the site sales will be reported in the o,
financial results However as the company had financial results for 2016, together with these related %
met its other non financial targets, it was agreed bonus costs but this site sale profit will be excluded N
by the Remuneration Committee that 50% of the from the financial resultsin 2016 for the purposes of o
maximurn bonus would be paid to directors and calculating whether financial targets have been met %
managers contingent on the completion of a site for 2016 bonus purposes ‘%

Directors’ Report 21 - 34 Directors’ Report 33
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Directors’ share options (Audited)

Detalls of the Directors’ share opttons outstanding at 31 December 2015 are shown below

Name Date option granted Number of options Option pnce Exercised sﬁ::::‘:z:;
Juliet Davenport 01/06/2004 35,000 £075 - -
Juliet Davenport 13/02/2012 86,956 £115 - -
Jutiet Davenport 13/02/2012 17,390 £115 - -
Juliet Davenport 18/09/2012 189,052 £050 - -
Jutiet Davenport 13/07/2013 144,000 £125 - -
Juliet Davenport 07/07/2015 80,350 £0 - -
Total - 552,748 - - -
Demse Cockrem 07/07/2015 21,822 £0 - -
Denise Cockremn Q7/07/2015 200,000 £229 - -
Total - 221,822 - - -
Richard Squires 1370272002 75,000 £115 - -
Overall Total - 849,570 - - -
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the
members of Good Energy Group PLC.

Report on the financial
statements

Our opinion
In our oplnion

Good Energy Group PLC's group financial
statements and parent company financral
staterments {the "financial statements”) give a
true and fair view of the state of the Group's and
of the parent company's affairs as at 31 December
2015 and of the Group's loss and the Group's and
the parent company's cash flows for the year
then ended,

the Group financtal statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) as
adopted by the European Union,

the parent company financial statements have
been properly prepared In accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Unlon and as
applied In accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 20086, and

the financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the requirernents of the
Companiles Act 2006

What we have audited

The financial statements, included within the
Annual Report & Financial Statements {the ‘Annual
Report”), comprise

the Consolidated and Parent Company
Statements of Financial Posltion as at 31
December 2015,

the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income for the year then ended,

the Consolidated and Parent Company
Statements of Cash Flows for the year then ended,

the Consolidated and Parent Company
Statements of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and

the notes to the financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information

Certain required disclosures have been presented
elsewhere in the Annual Report, rather than in the
notes to the financial statements These are cross-
referenced from the financial staterments and are
identified as audited

The financial reporting frarmework that has

been applied in the preparation of the financial
statements is IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union, and applicable law and, as regards the
parent company financial statements, as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 2006

In applying the financiat reporting framework,
the directors have made a number of subjective
judgements, far example in respect of significant
accounting estimates In making such estimates,
they have made assumptions and considered
future events
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Opinion on other matter
prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

in our opinion the information given In the Strategic
Report and the Directors’ Report for the finangial
year for which the financial statements are prepared
is consistent with the financial statements

Other matters on which
we are required to
report by exception

Adequacy of accounting records and
information and explanations receved

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to
report to you if 1n our opinon

we have not received all the information and
explanatiocns we require for our audit, or

adequate accounting records have not been kept
by the parent company or returns adeguate for our
audlt have not been received from branches not
visited by us, or

the parent company financial statements are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns

We have no exceptions to report ansing from
this responsibllity

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to
report to you If, In our opimion, certain disclosures
of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not
made We have no exceptions to report ansing from
this responsibility

Independent Auditors’ Report

Responsibilities for the
financial statements
and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the
directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’
Responsibilities Statement set out on page 29, the
dwectors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satlsfied that they
give a true and fair view

Qur responslbidity 1s to audit and express an opinlon
on the financial statementsin accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) ("ISAs (UK & Ireland) ')
Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards

for Auditors

This report, including the opinlons, has been
prepared for and only for the company’s members as
a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companles Act 2006 and for no other purpose We
do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume
respansibility for any other purpose or to any other
person to whom this report 15 shown or into whose
hands it may come save where expressly agreed by
our prior consent in writing

voday 51012310 1ioday 218310115
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What an audit of financial statements
involves

We conducted our audit in accordance with 1SAs
(UK & ireland) An auditinvolves obtaining evidence
about the amounts and disclosures In the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance
that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud gr errar This
inctudes an assessment of

whether the accounting policies are appropnate
to the group's and the parent company’s
circumstances and have been consistently appiled
and adequately disclosed,

« the reasonabieness of significant accounting
estimates made by the directors and

the overall presentation of the
financial statements

A L

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing
the directors' judgements against available evidence,
forming our own Judgements, and evaluating the
disclosures In the financial statements

We test and examine information, using sarmpling and
other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider
necessary te provide a reasonable basis for us to draw
conclusions We obtain audit evidence through testing
the effectiveness of controls, substantive procedures
or a combination of both

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financiat
information in the Annuat Report to identify matenal
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements
and toidentify any informatlon that is apparently
matenally incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent
with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of
performing the audit If we become aware of any
apparent matenal misstatements or Inconsistencies
we consider the implications for cur report

Colin Bates (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Bristol

11 April 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 3
(1]
o
For the year ended 31 December 2015 R
0
i)
8
Note 2015 2014 =
£000's £000s
REVENUE 5 64,281 57,618
Cost of Sales 5 {42,082) (38.782)
GROSS PROFIT 21,299 18,836
Administrative Expenses 6 {17,065} (15,045)
OPERATING PROFIT 6 4,234 3,791
Finance Income 10 23 87
Finance Costs (including exceptional items) n {4,129) (2,590)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND EXCEPTIONAL FINANCE COSTS 128 2162
Exceptional finance cost 1l - (881)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 128 1288 -E-"
4]
Taxation 12 (323) 520 2
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (195} 1,808 %
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE- §
Items that may subseqguently be reclassified to profit or loss -
t.oss on cash flow hedge - {328)
Other comprehensive expense for the year, net of tax - (328)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE)/INCOME FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT COMPANY (195) 1480
{Loss)/earnings per share
- Basic 13 (1.4p) 12 6p
- Diluted 13 (1.4p) 119p

The notes on pages 48 to 90 form part of these Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2015

Company registered no. 04000623

O I Lo (N S S )

Property, plant and equipment 14 60,984 44,729
Intangible assets 15 3,317 3,530
Restricted deposit accounts 3 2,803 -
Available-for-sale financial assets 16b 500 500
Total non-current assets 67,604 48,759

Sumrii e . o
Inventories 17 9,482 6 466

Trade and other receivables 18 11,598 10,281
Current tax receivable 12 126 109
Cash and cash equivalents 19 4,751 13,703
Total current assets 25,957 30,559
TOTAL ASSETS 93,561 79,318

SR A 1) [ [ 24T

Capltal and reserves

Called up share capital 20 748 733
Share premium account 20 9,786 9,077
EBT shares 20 (1,074) (127)
Retained Earnings 7483 8 260
Total equity attributable to members of the parent company 16,943 17,943

R et Ittt _ _ e ‘
Deferred taxation 21 567 15

Borrowings 22 55,91 39676
Total non- current liabillties 56,478 39,691

Retic o blites

Borrowings 22 5,626

Trade and other payables 23 14,514 15,076
Total current llabllities 20,140 21,684
Total liabitities 76.618 61,375
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 93,561 79,318

The Financial Statements on pages 41 to 90 were approved by the Board of Directors on 11 April 2016 and
signed on its behalf by

Juliet Davenport
. Chref Executive
1 April 2016

The notes on pages 48 to 90 form part of these Financial Staternents
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Parent Company Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2015

Company registered no: 04000623

2015

£000's
Investments 16a 35,206 28,941
Total non-current assets 35,206 20 941

Trade and other receivables 18 22 365

Cash and cash equivalents 19 234 509
Total current assets 256 874
TOTAL ASSETS 35,462 30,815

eI Lo
Capital and reserves

Share capital 20 748 733
Share premium account 20 9,786 0,077
EBT shares 20 {1,074} (127)
Retatned Earnings 4,N3 4,071
Total Equity 14,173 13,754

Borrowings 22 14,646 14,695

Total non-current babilities 14,646 14,695

Borrowings 22 6,511 2272

Trade and other payables 23 132 94
Total current llabilitles 6,643 2,366
Total liabilities 21,289 17.061
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 35,462 30.815

The Financial Statements on pages 41 to 30 were approved by the Board of Dlrectors on 11 April 2016 and
signed on its behalf by

. Juliet Davenport
> ﬁr‘%{\\n’ Chref Executive
M April 2016

The notes on pages 48 to 90 form part of these Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Note

Share
Capital

£000's

Share
Premium
Account

£000’s

EBT Retained

Shares

£000's

Earnings

£000's

At 1)January 2014 733 9,077 {236) 6,890 16,464
Profit for the year - - - 1,808 1808
Other comprehensive expense for the year - - - (328) (328)
Total comprehensive inceme for the year - - - 1,480 1,480
Share based payments 26 - - - 30 30
Tax credit retating to share option scheme 21 - - - an 3an
Sale of shares by EBT 20 - - igg 2! 130
Dividend Paid 24 - - - (472) (472)
Total cantributions by and distributions

to owners of the parent, recognised

directly in equity - - 109 (no) [¢)]
At 31 December 2014 733 9,077 (127) 8,260 17,943
At January 2015 733 9,077 (127) 8,260 17,043
Loss for the year - - - (195} (193)
Other comprehensive income for

the year - - - - -
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - (195) (195)
Share based payments 26 - - - 51 5}
Tax charge relating to share option scheme 21 - - - (1sn {151}
Issue of ordinary shares 20 15 709 - - 724
Purchase of shares by EBT 20 - - (1.150) - (1,150}
Sale of shares by EBT 20 - - 203 {4) 199
Dividend Paid 24 - - - (478)  (478)
Total contributions by and distributlons

to owners of the parent, recognised

directly in eguity 15 709 (947) (582) {BO5)
At 31 December 2015 748 9,786 (1,074) 7,483 16,943

The notes on pages 48 to 90 form part of these Financial Statements
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o \
ca |
For the year ended 31 December 2015 2
2
2
Share Share EBT Retained Total -~
Capital Premium Shares Earnings Equity
Account
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's |
At 1January 2014 733 9,077 (236) 1,602 nm,176 I
Profit for the year and total
comprehensive income - - - 2,920 2,920
Sale of shares by EBT 20 - - 109 21 130
Dwvidend Paid 24 - - - (472) (472)
Total contributions by and
distributions to owners of the parent,
recognised directly in equity - - 109 (451) (342)
At 31 December 2014 733 9,077 (127) 4,071 13,754 % |
g
At 1January 2015 733 9,077 (127) 40N 13,754 ;;
B
=
Profit for the year and total -+
comprehensive income - - - 1,124 1,124
Issue of ardinary shares 20 15 709 - - 724
Purchase of shares by EBT 20 - - {1150) - (1,150)
Sale of shares by EBT 20 - - 203 {4) 199
Owvidend Paid 24 - - - (478) (478)

Total contnibutions by and
distributions to owners of the parent,
recognised directly in equity 15 709 {947) {482) (705)

At 31 December 2015 748 9,786 (1,074) 4,N3 14,173

The notes on pages 48 to 90 form part of these Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
£000's £000's
Lok 1-"-, B !;l.:.‘l- RAECE EOR P N £ 1 FER 0+ U7 11 2 ) 7 ] . :
Cash generated from operations 25 1,590 3.697
Finance income 23 87
Finance cost (3,277} (2644)
Income tax received/(paid} 59 {500)

Net cash flows {used in}/generated from operating
activities {1,605} 640

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (17,748) (18,316)

Purchase of intangible fixed assets 15 (492) (619)
Deposit into restricted accounts (2,603) -

Acquisition of unquoted Investrnent - (500}
Net cash flows used In investing activities {21,043) (19,435}

R Qangrs Srsrir T GGV E 0

Payments of dividends 24 {451) (472)
Proceeds from bhorrowings 24,749 25,983
Repayment of borrowings (10,348) (1.035)
Capital repayments of finance leases - (83)
Purchase of own shares (453) w
Sale of own shares 199 130
Net cash flows generated from flnancing activities 13,696 14,523
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {8,952) (4,272)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 13,703 17975
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4,751 13,703

The notes on pages 48 to 90 form part of these Financlal Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 2
B
2015 =1
£000’s
4 vﬂ.w wr;(-;';‘e ’Tii\_a_]N‘;u]y_!:tlr;:ti't'!\“.l;—, ,.;r;riﬂ._‘r’.rn,gﬂi ;i;_.sf.' 3 ) _- L _
Cash generated from operations 25 (1,204} 1424
Finance income 786 -
1 Finance cost (1,195} (1,087)
| Income tax paid (20} -
| Net cash {used in)/generated from operating
actlvitles (1.633) 337
Payment of dlwdends 24 {451) (472)
Repayment of borrowings (35) -
Intercompany loans movement 2,098 135
Purchase of own shares (453) - %
Sale of own shares 199 130 3
Net cash generated from/{used in}financing %
activities 1,358 (207) z
2
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (275) 130
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 509 379
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 234 509

The notes on pages 48 to 90 form part of these Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

1. General Information

Good Energy Group PLC 1s listed on the Alternative Investment Market of the London Stock Exchange and 1s
tncorporated and domiciied in the United Kingdom

The principatl activities of Good Energy Group PLC are those of a holding and management company to the
Group and a lender to, and seller of, generation development sites

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are the purchase, generation and sale of electricity from renewable
sourees, the sale of gas, services relating to micro-renewable generation and the development of new
electriaity generation sites

The purpose of the Annual Report and financial statements ts to provide informatton to members of the
company It contains certain forward looking statements relating to the operations, performance and
financial condition of the Group By thair nature these statements involve uncertainty since future events
and circurnstances can differ from those anticipated Nothing in the Annual Report and financial statements
should be construed as a profit forecast

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Group operates

The principal accounting poticies applied in preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with (nternational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union and IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRSIC) and with
those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to cormpanies reporting under IFRS

The flnancial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and under the historical cost
convention or historic cost modified by revaluation of financlal assets and financial Liabilities held at fair value
through profit or loss

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requlres the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses dunng the financial year

Although these estimates are based on management's reasonable knowledge of the amount, event or actions,
actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates The crnitical accounting judgements, estimates

and assumptions that have a significant nsk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and labilities wathin the next financial year are discussed in note 4 and the following accounting policy
notes revenue recognition (2 5), property, plant and equipment (2 7), inventornies (2 11) including generation
development sites (211 3) and credit nisk (313)




Good Ener
ﬁ(&roup PLC BY .

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

uoday Ji8a1e08

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
2 2 Going concern

The Group meets its day to day capital requirermnents through positive cash balances held on deposit

or through its bank facilites The current economic conditions continue to create opportunities and
uncertainties which can impact the level of demand for the Group's products and the availability of bank
finance for the foreseeable future The Group's forecasts and projections , taking account of the possible
changes In trading performance. show that the Group should be able to operate within the level of its
current facilibies

After making enquires the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future The Group therefore continues to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing its consolidated financial statements Further information on the Group's
borrowings can be found in note 22

2.3 Change in accounting policles and disclosures

There have been a number of new standards and Interpretations issued in 2015, none of which are yet
effective At this stage, management have not applied these new standards in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements Managemaent has yet to fully assess the impact of IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers which are both effective for the Group for
its 2018 financial statements

yoday 5103031i(

There are no other standards or interpretations that are not yet effective that are expected to have a material
effect on the Group's net assets or results

2.4 Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the company and 1ts subsidiaries
and enterprises controlled by the company (and its subsidiaries) made up to 31 December each year Control
is achieved where the company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an investee
enterprise so as to obtain benefits from its activities

The acquisition of subsichanes 1s accounted for using the purchase method On acquisition, the identifiable
assets, liabillties and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are measured at their fair values on the date of
acquisition Consideration payable on acquisition Is measured at falr value

For business comblnations made after 1 July 2009, costs directly attnibutable to the business
combination are not included n the measurement of cost, but expensed in the iIncome statement in line
with IFRS 3 (revised)

The results of subsidianes acquired or disposed of duning the year are included in the Consolidated
Staterment of Comprehensive Income from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal as appropriate

wWhere necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidianes to bring the accounting
policies used into line with those used by other members of the Group
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inter-company transactions and balances between Group enterprises are eliminated on consolidation
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
2.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the fair vatue of the consideration received or receivable for the provision of goods and
services which fall within the Group's ordinary activities, excluding transactions with or between subsidianes
All revenue and profit before tax arose within the United Kingdom

Revenue represents amounts recoverable from customers for supply of electricity, gas, generation of power
and sale of generation development sites and is measured at the falr value of the consideration received or
receivable, stated net of discounts, returns and value added taxes The Group recognises revenue when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured, when it 1s probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the Group, and when speclfic critena have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below

2 51 Power supply

Revenue for the supply of electricity 1s accrued based on industry data flows and national gnd data These
Include an estimate of power used, based on the estimated annual consumption of each customer Accrued
income is superseded when customer meter reads are recelved at which point estimates are adjusted to
actual usage

For gas, revenue 15 accrued based on information recerved from the Group’s gas shipper, which includes
details of all the sttes held, their estimated annual quantities of gas used adjusted by & pre-determined
weather correction factor This information is subsequently adjusted and invoiced based on customer and
industry meter reads

For electricity and gas supply, payment s collected either as a direct debit or paid on receipt of bill in arrears
Overdue amounts are reviewed regularly for impairment and provision made as necessary

2 5 2 Feed-in Tanff {FIT) administration services

Good Energy provides FIT admimistratton services to micro-generators who are signed up to the FIT scheme
For FiT services, revenue is earned from Ofgem for administenng the scheme For FIT services, revenue 1s
recognised in two parts, there 1s an initial fee pald by Ofgem for taking on a generator, and then an ongoing
amount that s received annually for provision of FIT services The inital fee is spread over the ‘take on’ period
for a new customer and the ongoing fee that is received 1s spread over the 12 month compliance period

2 53 Renewable Obligatlon Certiflcates (ROCs) revenue recognition

ROCs are awarded {0 the Group from Ofgem based on generation of power These ROCs are sold on receipt
of certificate from Ofgem allowing transfer of title

The amount of revenue recognised on sale is In accordance with a contractual agreement where the pricing i1s
based on Ofgem’s mintmum ROC value (the buy-out) and a prudent estimate of the re-cycle element of the
final value of a ROC once all energy suppliers have complied or paid the penalty for non-compliance with the
renewables obligation (the recycle) A final adjustment to ROC revenue and profit 1s recognised once Ofgem
have announced the final out-turn ROC pnice
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
2 § 4 Generation development site revenue recogrition

Revenue is recognised on the completion date of the sale and purchase agreement pertarming to each site
sold wWhere there is contingent revenue included in the sale and purchase agreement revenue is recognised
based on management’s assessment of the likelihood aof the contingent revenue being received based on
latest information available

2.6 Goondwilll, Intangible assets and amortisation

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition of a business combination over the Group's share
of the fair value of iIdentifiable assets, labibties and contingent habilities of the business acquired at the
date of acquisition and 1s carned as an indefinite life asset Goodwill is initially recognised at cost After initial
recogrution goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impalmaent losses Gains and losses on
disposal of a business include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the business sold

At the date of acquisition the amount of goodwill is altocated to cash generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing and 1s tested annually for impairment, or more frequently If there ts an indication that the
value of the goodwill may be impaired

2 G 1 Definite tife intangible assets
Definite Ufe iIntangible assets comprise software licences and website development costs, which meet the
criteria of 1AS 38 "Intangible assets™ The software licences and website development costs are carried at
cost less accumutated amortisation and imparment losses Cost compnses purchase price from third parties
as well as directly attnbutable internally generated development costs where relevant
2 6 2 Indefinite life intangible assets
The Power Supply Licence s held as an indefinite ife intangible asset according to the criteria of IAS 38
“Intangible assets The Power Supply Licence is carnied at cost tess accumulated impairment losses Cost
comprises purchase price from third parties as well as directly attributable internally generated developrment
costs where relevant
2 6 3 Amortisation
Amortisation on definite Life intangible assets is charged to the Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets The estimated useful
lives for intangibles with definite lives are as follows

Software Licenses between 3 and 10 years

Website development costs between 2 and 5 years

Amortisation of intangible assets s included in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income in
‘administrative expenses’
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2 6 4 Impairment

The Directors regularly review intangible assets for impairment and provision 1s made if necessary Assets
with anindefinite useful life, eg goodwill and the Power Supply Licence are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for Impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indlcate that the carrylng amount may not be recoverable An
wnpairment loss Is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset's fair vatue less costs to sell and value Inuse For
the purposes of assessing Impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows {cash-generating units) Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impalrment are reviewed for possible reversal of the Impalrment at the end of each reporting period

2,7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equiprment is stated at cost less depreciation Cost includes the oniginal purchase price
of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use
Depreciation Is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated residual
value, over their expected useful llves on the following bases

Fixtures fittings and equipment between 3 and 5 years
Leasehold improvements over the life of the lease
Generation assets between 24 and 29 years
Assets under construction not depreciated

The useful econormic lives of assets and their resldual values are reviewed on an annual basis and revised
where considered appropriate The carrying value of property, plant and equipment is reviewed for
impairment when events or changes In circumstance indlicate that the carrylng value may not be recoverable

2.8 Investments

An undertaking Is regarded as a subsidiary undertaking if the company has control over 1ts operating and
financial policies Investments in subsidiary undertakings that are directly owned by the company are stated
at cost less amounts written-off for any permanent diminution tn value

2.9 Leases

Assets financed by leasing agreements that give rights approximating to ownership (finance leases) are
capitalised at their falr value and depreciation or amortisation is prowided over the lower of the useful life and
term of the lease The capital elements of future obligations under finance leases are included as babilities

in the Statement of Financial Pesition and the current year's interest element, having been allocated to
financial periods to give a constant pernodic rate of charge on the outstanding liabillty, is charged to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income

Rentals applicable to operating leases where substantially all of the benefits and rnisks of ownership remain
with the lessor are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a stralght-tine basis over the term

of the lease
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
2.10 Pensions

The Group operates a defined contnbution pension scheme Under this scheme the Group pays contnbutions
to pubbcly or privately adrinistered pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis
The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid The contributions are
recognised as an employee benefit expense when they are due The pension charge for the year represents
the amounts payable by the Group in respect of the year

2.11 Inventories
2 11 1 Renewable Obligation Certificates (ROCs)

Under the provisions of the Utilities Act 2000, all electrncity suppliers are required to procure a set
percentage of their supplies from accredited renewable electncity generators This obligation can be fulfitled
by the purchase and surrender of ROCs onginally 1ssued to generators, or by making payments to Ofgem
who then recycle the payments to purchasers of ROCs Notwithstanding that Good Energy Limited, a
subsidiary company, supplies electricity sourced entirely from renewable generation over a 12 month period,
Its percentage obligation to submit ROCs is set by Ofgem The cost obbigation s recognised as electricity 1s
supplied and charged as a cost of sale in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income Any gains
or losses on disposal of ROCs which are in excess of the Group's compliance obligations are included as an
adjustment to the compliance cost included within cost of sales ROCs are valued at the lower of purchase
cost and estimated realisable value

211 2 Levy Exemption Certificates (LECs)

The removal of Levy Exemption Certificates was announced by the Government in 2015, starting 1 August
2015 Excessinventory of LECs had been purchased by the company in the years prior to this date The
cost of thrs iInventory was written back to the income statement 1n 2015, resulting 1n a non-recurring credit
It will be utilised against the cost of Climate Change Levy for business customers until March 2018, with
costs charged through the income statement LECs are valued at the lower of purchase cost and estimated
realisable value

2 1 3 Generation development sites

The Group incurs costs in respect of generation development sites to secure development rights and
planning permission to establish power generation units on a number of different sites These are recognised
as inventory at the lower of cost and net realisable value

212 Current and deferred taxatlon

The tax credit represents the sum of the tax currently receivable and deferred tax The tax currently
receivable I1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
Staterment of Comprehensive Income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes tems that are never taxable or deductible The Group's
Liability for current tax is calculated by using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of each financial penod

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amount of
assets and habilities in the Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit and)is accounted for using the Statement of Financial Position bathlity method Deferred tax
Labilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that It is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference anses from

goodwitl or frorm the Initial recogmition {other than In a business combination) of other assets and liabitities
n a transaction which affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit Deferred tax habilities are
recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing in investments in subsidiaries except where the Group 1s
able to control the reversat of the temporary difference and itis probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseesable future
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets i1s reviewed at the end of each financial period and reduced to
the extent that it Is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset i1s reallsed or the llability is settled

Deferred tax is charged or credited In the Statement of Comprehensive income, except when it relates

to items credited or charged directly to equity, In which case the deferred tax s also dealt with in equity
Deferred tax assets and hatulities are offset when there is a legally enforceahble right to set off current tax
assets aganst current tax labilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the sarme taxation
authority, and the Group Intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis

213 Available-for-sale financial assets

Equity instruments held by the Group and designated as avalilable-for-sale are carried at falr value, with
movements in fair value recognised 1n other comprehensive iIncome Where fair value cannot be rehiably
measured, the assets are approximated at cost Cumulative fair value gains or losses on an asset are recycled
through the income statement when the asset is disposed or impaired A significant or prolonged decline

in the fair value of a security below tts cost 1s considerad as an indicator that the securities are impaired
Impairments are recognised In the Income statement

2.14 Financilal instruments

The Group uses certain financial instruments in its operating and investing actvities that are deemed
appropriate for its strategy and circumstances

Financial instruments recegnised on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Positlon Include cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables and borrowings Financial assets and liabilities are
recognised on the Consclidated Statement of Financial Position when the company has become a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument

2 14 1 Loans and receivables

The Group’'s loans and receivables comprise trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents in
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position These assets are non-dernvative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market They arnise principally through the
provision of goods and services to customers (e g trade receivables), but also iIncorporate other types of
contractual monetary asset They are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attriibutable to their acquisition orissue, and are subsequently carried at amaortised cost using the effective
interest rate method, less provision forimpatrment Trade recelvables are shown Inclusive of unbilled
amounts to customers and of payments made in advance by customaers, reflecting the underlying nature of
customer account balances

Impairment provisions are recognised when there 1s objective evidence (such as significant financial
difficultres on the part of the counter-party or default or significant delay in payment) that the Group will be
unable to collect all of the amounts due under the terms receivahble, the amount of such a provision being
the difference between the net carrying amount and the present value of the future expected cash flows
assoclated with the impaired receivable For trade receivables, which are reported net, such provisions are
recorded in a separate allowance account with the loss being recogntsed within administrative expenses in
the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income On confirmation that the trade recelvable wilt not be
collectable, the gross carrying value of the asset 1s written off against the associated pravision

Cash and cash equivatents comprise cash on hand and on demand deposits, and other short term, highly
liguid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant

risk of changes in value
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Restncted deposits are held by financing providers to cover debt service and maintenance expenses on
generation sites to which the funding relates

Short-term secunty deposits are held by trading exchanges to cover short term electricity trades
2 14 2 Financial habiiities and equity

Financial labilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered mto An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its Habilities

2 14 3 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the course of ordinary
business from suppliers Accounts payable are classifled as current Labilitles if payment is due within one
year or less If not they are presented as non-current habilities

Trade payables are recognised imitially at fair value and subsequently held at amortised cost
2 14 4 Borrowings

The Group expenses borrowing costs over the term of the loan facility Where borrowing costs are
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset, such costs are capitalised as
part of the specific asset Details of the Group’s barrowings are included in note 22

2.15 Share based payments

The Group applies IFRS 2 to share based payments The Group operates a share based payment
compensation plan, under which the entity grants key employees the option to purchase shares in the
company at a specified price maintained for a certamn duration

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of the options s recognised as an expense The total
arnount to be expensed Is determined by refarence to the fair value of the options granted

including any market performance conditions (for example an entity’s share price}

exctuding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions {for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period) and

including the impact of any non-vesting conditions {for example, the requirement for employees to save)

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to vest The total expense is recognised over the vesting perlod, which s the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied

At the end of each financial period the Group revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions !t recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity

when the options are exercised and the company 1ssues new shares to meet that obligation, the proceeds
received net of any directly attnbutable transaction costs are credited to share capital {(nominal value) and
share premivm
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
2,16 Segmental reporting

Cperating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance and

allocate resources

2 17 Share capltal

Ordinary shares are classified as equity incremental costs directly attributable to the 13sue of new ordinary
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

2,18 Finance income

Finance income Is received in respect of cash deposits and is recognised using the effective interest method
When a loan and receivable 1s impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the aniginal effective interest rate of the instrument, and
continues unwinding the discount as finance Income Finance income onimpalired loan and receivables is
recognised using the original effective interest rates

2.9 Exceptlonal items
Exceptional itemns are disclosed separately in the financial statements where It Is necessary to do so to

provide further understanding of the financial performance of the Group They are matenal items of income
or expense that have been shown separately due to the significance of their nature or amount

2.20 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability In the Group's financial
statements in the perled In which the dividends are approved by the company’s sharehclders
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3 Financial and Capital Risk Management ~
3.1 Financlal risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a varlety of financial nsks Liquidity risk, market risk (including currency
nisk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk and commodity price risk} and credit risk The Group's overall
risk managernent programme focuses on the unpredictablilty of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financral performance The Group may use dervative financial
instruments to hedge certan risk exposures
311 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk 1s the risk that an entity will encounter cifficulty inraising funds to meet cash flow commitmeants
assoclated with financial instruments The Group has cash resources available to it and prepares, in the
operating entities of the Group, forecasts for the forthcoming year which indicate that In the Directors’
apinion it wlll have sufficient resources to fund the continuation of trade
The Group momitors cash flow forecasts on a ‘rolling forecast’ basis to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet
operational needs while maintaining enough headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities at all g
times so as not to breach barrowing Limits or covenants b
=
A hquidity analysis of financial instruments is provided below %
[1°]
Parent Company Less than Betweean Between Over 5 years 8,
31 Deacember 2015 1year Vand 2 years 2 and 5 years ~
£000's £000's £000's £000's
Corporate bond 1,110 16,075 - -
Loan from group companies 6,389 - - -
Trade and other payables 132 - - -
Total 7.631 16,075 - -
Parent Company Less than Between Between Qver S years
31 December 2014 1year 1and 2 years 2 and Svyears
£000's £000's £000's £000's
Corporate bond 1,088 1088 16,189 -
Loan from group companles 2,272 - - -
Trade and other payables Q4 - - -
Total 3,454 1088 16,189 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

3. Finanaial and Capital Risk Management (continued)

Consolidated Less than Between Between Over Syears
31 December 2015 1vear 1and 2 years 2 and Syears

£000's £000's £000's £000's
Borrowings 7,702 4,220 13,828 55,31
Corporate bond 1,No 16,075 - -
Trade and other payables 14,514 - - -
Total 23,326 20,295 13,828 55,31
Consolidated Less than Between Between QOver 5 years
31 Decermnber 2014 1year 1and 2 years 2 and 5 years

£E000's E000's £000's £000°s
Borrowings 8,874 2620 8,333 32982
Corporate bond 1088 1,088 16 189 -
Trade and other payables 15,076 - - -
Total 25,038 3708 24,522 32,982

312 Market Risk
31 2a Currency risk

The Group 1s exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from the purchase of capital equipment

items from European countries The primary currency exposure 1s with respect to the Euro  Managerment
have set up a policy, that when it 1s deemed appropnate, the Group will forward buy euros against major
contracts to reduce foreign exchange exposure As at 31 December 2015 no ewros (2014 nil) were
purchased forward

31 2b Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The financial risk Is the risk to the Group’s earnings that arises from fluctuations in Interest rates and the
degree of volatility of these rates For short-term bank overdraft factities, the Group does not use derivative
instruments to reduce its exposure to interest rate fluctuations as the policy of the Group s not ta rely on
short-term borrowing facitities for any significant duration The Directors use interest rate swaps If they
consider their exposure to interest rate nsk to be matenal Forlong term borrowings, the Group may use
interest rate swaps to fix the interest rate payable on these matenal balances in order to mitigate the risk of
any fluctuations ininterest rates

312c Commodity price risk

The Group's operations results In exposure to fluctuationsin energy prices Management monitors enargy
prices and analyses supply and demand volumes to manage exposure to these risks The Group typically
buys power forwards in order to mitigate some of the risk of commodity price fluctuations

If the whotesale market moves significantly upwards or downwards, the price risk to the Group will depend
upon a number of factors including the excess or deficiency of power being supplied by renewable power
purchase contracts in place at the time The Group may be required to pass on the pnce risk to customers
Retall prices can be amended with 30 days' advance notification to customers The Group closely monitors
movements in the wholesale market and assess trends so it Is ready to take necessary actton when required

Vertical integration of the Group helps further mitigate exposure to to changes in power prices
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3. Financial and Capital Risk Management {continued)
313 Credit nsk

The Group’s exposure to credit nsk anses from its receivables from customers At 31 December 2015 and
2014 the Group's trade and other receivables were classed as due within one year, details of which are
included in note 18 The Group's policy is to undertake credit checks where appropriate on new customers
and to provide for doubtful debts based on estimated lrrecoverable amounts determined by reference to
specific circumstances and past default experience Credit risk Is also in part mitigated by the policy to
offer direct debit as a preferred method of payment for customers At the end of the reporting period the
Directors have provided for specific doubtful debts and believe that there 1s no further credit risk Should
the level of bad debtincrease by 0 25 per cent, this would have an impact of £44,000 on the Statement of
Comprehenswe Income

Credit nsk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions
The Directors monitor credit quality of the institutions used when considering which banks and financral
institutions funds should be placed with

3 2 Capital nsk management

The Group s objectives when managing caplital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns to shareholders, and to maintain an optimal capital structure

The Group monltors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio calculated as net debt divided by total capital
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including ‘current and non-current borrewings’ as shown in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position) less cash and cash equivalents Total capital s calculated as
‘equity as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position plus net debt The capital structure of
the Group is as follows

Note 2015 2014

£000's £000's
Total borrowings 22 61,537 46,284
Less cash in restncted deposit accounts (2,803) -
Less cash and cash equivalents 19 {4,751} (13.703)
Net debt 53,883 32,581
Total equity 16,943 17,943
Total capital 70,926 50,524
Gearing ratio 76.1% 64 5%

During 2015, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from 2014, was to seek debt funding at appropriate
margmns from lenders against long terrm power generation assets These assets have highly predictable
revenue streams and are consldered stable for long terrn borrowing  tn future, in order to maintain or adjust
its capital structure, the Group may re-structure its debt, 1ssue new shares or sell assets

The Group s borrowings are subject to maintaining covenants as defined by the debt funders Throughout the
year ended 31 December 2015 the Group complied with all external borrowing covenants and management
monitors the continued compliance with these covenants on a monthly or quarterly basis
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3. Financial and Capital Risk Management (continued)
3 3 Fair value estimation

The table below presents the Group's financial assets that are measured at fair value, by valuation method at
31 December 2015 The different levels have been defined as follows

-Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habilities (Level 1),

-Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or llability, either
directly (that s, as prices} or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2),

-Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(Level 3),

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included
inLevel 3 Specific valuation techniques used to value the unlisted secunties included the assessment of
the current status of the project and a review of any changes to circumstances since the initlal acquisition
of shares

2015 Level1l Level 2 Level 3 Total
£000's £000's £0OQ's £000's

Assets

Available for sale financial assets

Unlisted secunties - - 500 500

Total assets - - 500 500

2014 Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
£000's £600's £000's £000's

Assets

Available for sale financial assets
Unlisted securities - - 500 500

Total assets - - 500 500

There were no changes In Level 3 instruments for the year ended 31 Decernber 2015
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4, Cntical Accounting Estimates

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has to make judgements and
estimates that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements These
estimates and judgements are evaluated continually and are based on historicat experience and other factors
including expectations of future events The mast critical of these accounting judgements and estimates are
detailed below Glven the nature of the estimates and judgements made, unless explicitly stated otherwise, it
is not appropriate to provide a sensitivity analysis of the judgements and estimates noted

4.1 Revenue recognition

Revenue calculated from eneargy sales includes an estirnate of the value of electricity or gas supplied to
customers between the date of the last meter reading and the end of the reporting period This witl have been
estimated by using historicat consumption patterns and data avaiable, and takes into consideration industry
reconciliation processes, upon which the Group takes a prudent position until final reconcibation data s
available from the industry fourteen months after the supply date

4.2 Power purchase costs

Power purchase costs can typically take 14 months from the date of supply to be finalised due to the
processes that the energy market has to complete in order to finalise generatlon and consumption data for
any one particular month Therefare there 15 an element of power putchase costs that needs to be estimated
based on a combination of in-house and industry data that 1s available at any particular point in time

4.3 Inventories

The Group carnes ROCs as stock inits balance sheet These are valued at the lower of cost or estimated
reallsable value Gains orlosses made on ROCs which are subsequently sold, are only recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income when they crystallise

The final cut-turn value of a ROC Is only published by Ofgem in October following the compliance year (April
to March) which may require a final adjustment to gains or losses on the sale or purchase of ROCs previousty
recopnised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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4 Critical Accounting Estimates (continued)
4.4 Provisions for bad and doubtful debt

The assessments undertaken in recognising pravisions have been made in accordance with IAS 39 A
provision for impairment of trade recevables 1s established when there 1s objective evidence that the
group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the orlginal terms of the recewvables
Signuficant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered
indicators that the trade recevable 1s Impaired

The amount of any loss 15 recognised in the iIncome staterment within administrative expenses
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against admimistrative expenses in
the iIncome statement

4.5 Recoverability of capitalised generatlon project costs and generation assets

Generation project costs capitalised in inventory are reviewed by management on a monthly basis Whera
management deem that on the balance of probability, the likely planning outcome for a glven generation
site will prevent 1t being constructed or sold, a wrlte off provision is made for the full amount of the inventory
relating to that site after excluding an assessment of recoverable costs Where possible, recoverable costs
will be estimated based on known market values

The carrying value of the generating sites 1s considered in relation to the value in use and a provision will be
recognised for any excess For the current year no provision was deemed necessary

5. Segmental Analysis

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the Board of Directors (the ‘Board’) The Board
reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources Management
has determined the operating segments based on these reports The Board considers the business from

a business class perspective, with each of the main trading subsidiaries accounting for each of the
business classes

The main segments are -
Supply Companies (Including electricity supply, FIT administration and gas supply),
Electricity Generation Companies {including wind and solar generation companies),
Generation Development (Including early stage development companies)
Holding companies, being the activity of Good Energy Group PLC

The Board assesses the performance of the operating segments based primarity on summary financial

information, extracts of which are reproduced below An analysis of profit and loss, assets and liabilities and
additions to non-current asset, by class of business, with a reconciliation of segmental analysis to reported

results follows
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5 Segmental Analysis (continued)

Year ended 31
December 2015

Electriclty
Supply

£000's

FIT Gas Total
Supply Supply
Companies

admin-
istration

£000's £000's

Electricity
Generation

£000's

Generation
Development

£000's

Holding
Campanles/
Consolidation

Adjustmants

£000's

Revenue

from external

customers 40,192 3902 16,411 60,505 3,576 200 - 64,281
Inter-segment

revenue - - - - 3,882 - {3.882) -
Total revenue 40,192 3902 16,41 60,505 7.458 200 (3.882) 64,28]

(1,655) (12,9

(40)

" (358)

- (42,982

Cost of sales (24.542) {(39,184)

Inter-segment

cost of sales (3,882} - - (3,882) - - 3,882 -
Gross profit 11,768 2247 3,424 17,439 4018 {158) - 21299
Administrative

expenses (12,877) {353) (1448) {1.408) (16.086)
Depreclation &

amortisation (975) - (3) Mm (979)
Operating

profit/{loss) 3,587 3,665 {(1609) (1,409) 4,234
Net finance

income/{costs) 136 (4 301} (494) 553 (4,106)
Profit/(loss)

before tax 3,723 (636) (2.103) {856} 128

Segment
assets

Segment
lhabilities

34,628

29,040

6,778

12,414

(43,936) 93,561

(39075} 76,618

Net assets/
(llabllities)

5,588

(5 636)

15139 16,943

Additions to
non-current
assets

755

18,090

- 18845
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5 Segmental Analysis (continued)

Year ended 31
Decemnber 2014

Electricity FIT Gas Total Electricity  Generation Holding
Supply admin- Supply Supply Generation Development Companies/
istration Companles consolidation
adjustments

£000's  £000’s £000's £000's £000's

£000's

BVt i

Revenue from

externat

customers 31593 2544 1.568 45,705 1754 10,159 - 57,618
Inter-segrnent

revenue - - - - 2,06 - (2106) -
Total Revenue 31,593 2544 11,568 45,705 3,860 10,159 (21068) 57618

&Rl f

(6.470) - (38782)

Cost of sales (19,789) (1L619) (9,064) (30,472) {1,840)

Inter-segment cost

of sales (2.106) - - (2,106) - - 2106 -
Gross Profit 9,698 925 2,504 13,127 2,020 3.689 - 18,836
Administrative

expenses {1,812) (271) (1,251) (895) (14,229)
Depreciation &

amortisation (BOB) - (4) (4) (816)
Operating profit/

(loss) 507 1,749 2,434 {899) 3.79
Net finance

(costs)/income (13) {2,346) {430) 2B6 (2.503)
Profit/(loss)

before tax 494 (597} 2,004 (613) 1,288

‘.&315[:;.»:11:"[?-, ‘ s & Lo,

Segment assels 21,910 63,214 13,626 (19,432) 79,318
Segment liabilities {(15,000) (58,518) (16,889} 29,032 (61,375)
Net assets/

{Uabilities) 6,910 4,696 (3.263) 9,660 17843
Additions to

non-current

assets 247 25,208 - - 25,455

All turnover arose within the United Kingdom

Consolidation adjustments relate to inter-company sales of generated electriclty and the etimination of
inter-company balances
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6 Operating Profit and Administrative Expenses ~
2015
£000's
The operating profit is stated after charging
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14 2,351 1347
Amortisation of intangible assets 15 705 567
Operating lease rentals 676 329
Auditors’' Remuneration
Audit of parent and consolidated finanoial statements 27 27
Audit of subsidiaries o8 g5
Subtotal {audit) 135 122
Other services - financial statement preparation 25 22 o
Other services 34 - @
a
Tax services 60 20 g
Subtotal (non-audit) ne 42 %5
=]
=
The administrative expenses comprise the followling -
Staff costs 7,345 6,640
Rent and office costs 3,573 3,759
Marketing costs 1,776 1619
Professional fees and bank charges 2152 1,528
Bad Debts 1,240 633
Depreciation and amortlsation a7a 866
Total 17,065 15,045

7 Profit of the Parent Company

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Statement of Comprehensive Income of the
parent company Is not presented as part of these financial statements

The parent company’s profit for the financial year was £1 123,794 (2014 profit £2,919 980)
The profit for the parent company in 2014 included part of the proceeds from the sale of West Raynham solar

site In the segmental analysis 100% of the proceeds from West Raynham were shown within Generation
Development reflecting the operational performance of the segment
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8 Staff Costs

Staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration, were as follows

2015 2014

£000's £000's

Wages and salarles 8,741 7,651

Soclal security costs 866 798

Share based payments 51 30

Other pension costs 343 334

Total staff costs 10,001 8813
Capitalised staff costs {729) (1.233)

Total expensed staff costs 9,272 7,580

Details of share based payments can be found in note 26

The average monthly number of employees, including the Directors, during the year was as follows

2015 2014

Number Number

Operations 135 o
Business services 41 127
Total management and administration 276 228

8 Directors’ and Key Management Remuneration

Directors' and Key Management emoluments 2015 2014
£000's £000's

Aggregate emoluments 922 1208
Contributions to money purchase penslon schemes 69 57

Key management are considered to be the directors of Good Energy Group PLC and the executive team The
emoluments relating to these teams are included in the table above

During the year retirement benefits were accruing to 2 Directors of the Group (2014 3) Inrespect of money
purchase pension schemes

in respect of the highest paid Director, the Group paid remuneration of £222.740 (2014 £252,183), including
contnbutions to the money purchase pension scheme of £23,868 (2014 £22,950)

Individual remuneration for the Directors is set by the Remuneration Committee of the Board which consists
entirely of Non-Executive Directors Appropriate keyman insurance pelicies are i place

During the year, no share options were exercised by Directors or key management (2014 N7,616) The
aggregate amount of gains made by directors or key management on the exercise of share options was nil

(2014 £187,077)

Detatls of Directors' emolurnents are given in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 31
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10 Finance Income

2015 2014

£000's £000's

Bank and other interest recelvables 23 87

11 Finance Costs

2015 2014

£000's £000's

On bank loans and overdrafts 3,192 1467
On corporate bond 1,10 a29
Other interest payable 1 56
Amortisation of debt issue costs 327 196
Exceptional finance cost on repayment of borrowings - 881
Total finance costs 4,630 3,529
Less amounts capitalised on gualifying assets {501} (939)
Total 4,129 2,590

12. Taxation

2015

£000’s

Current tax (see note below)

Current Tax 165 -
Adiustments in respect of prior years {243) (108)
Total current tax {78) (108)

Deferred tax

QOrlgination and reversal of temporary differences (132) (420)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 533 8

Total deferred tax (see note 21) 40 (412)
Tax on profit on ordinary actlvities 323 {520)

Adjustments inrespect of prior years deferred taxamounts are fromupdated assumptions usedin the
treatment of Group relieved losses and capital altowances and alsorelate to the reduction arising due to carry
back of losses to previous years
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12 Taxation (continued)
Factors affecting the tax credit for the year

The tax assessed for the year is higher (2014 lower) than the standard welghted average rate of corporation
tax in the UK of 20 25% (2014 2150%) The differences are explained as follows

2015 2014
£000's £000's
Profit before tax 128 1288
Profit before tax multiplied by the weighted average rate of
Corporation Tax in the UK of 20 25% (2014 21 50%) 26 277
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes {9) (2)
Non-taxable gain on sale of Investment - (728)
Eftects of changes In tax rate 16 33
Prior year adjustrment - current tax (243) (108)
Prior year adjustment - deferred tax 533 8
Total tax charge/(cedit) for year 323 (520)

Factors that may affect future tax charges

The main corporation tax rate was reduced from 21% to 20% from 1 April 2015 under the Finance Act 2013
Accordingly the company's profits are taxed at an effective rate of 20 25% The July 2015 Budget Statement
announced changes to the UK Corporation tax rate which will reduce the main rate of corporation tax to 19%
from 1 Apnl 2017 and to 18% from 1 April 2020 These changes were substantively enacted on 26 October
2015 and accordingly the deferred tax balance has been calculated using a rate of 18% On 17 March 2016 the
Government announced that on 1 April 2010 the rate of corporatlon tax will reduce to 17%

Corporation tax payable/{recoverable} as per Statement of Financial Positlcn

Parent Company Consolidated
2015 2014 2015 2014

£000's £000's £000's £000’s

UK Corporation Tax on profits for the year - - (126) (109)
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13 (Loss)/Earnings Per Ordinary Share

Basic

Basic (loss)/earnings per share 1s calculated by dividing the (loss) /profit attnbutable to owners of the
company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares dunng the year after excluding 521,989 (2014
208 863} shares held by Clarke Willmott Trust Corporation Limited in trust for the Good Energy Group
Employee Benefit Trust

Consolldated

2015 2014
(Loss)/profit attnbutable to owners of the Company {(£000's) (195) 1,808
Basic weighted average number of ordinary shares (000's) 14,455 14,322
Basic (loss}/earnings per share {1.4p) 126p

Diluted

Diluted earmings per share 15 calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares to
assume conversion of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares Potentially dilutive ordinary shares arise

from awards made under the Group’s share-based incentive plans Where the vesting of these awards s
contingent on satisfying a service or performance condition the number of potentiatly dilutive ordinary
shares is calculated based on the status of the condition at the end of the year Potentially dilutive ordinary
shares are actually dilutive only when the average market price of the cornpany’s ordinary shares during the
year exceeds their exercrse pnce {options) or issue price {other awards) The greater any such excess, the
greater the dilutive effect In accordance with IAS 33 ‘Earnings per share’, for the purposes of calculating
diluted loss per share, the effect of potentially dilutive ordinary shares has not been taken into account

for the year ended 31 December 2015 due to there being a loss for the year The average rmarket price of

the company's ordinary shares during the year was 222p {2014 243p) The dilutive effect of share-based
incentives was nil (2014 863,326 shares)

Consolidated

2015
{Loss)/profit attnbutable to owners of the Company (£000's) {195) 1.808
Weighted average number of diluted ordinary shares (00G's) 14,455 15185
Dlluted (loss}/earnings per share (1.4p) 119p
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14 Property, Plant and Equipment

Consolidated Leasehold Furniture, Generation Assetsunder Total
Year ended 31 improvements fittings & assets  construction

December 2015 equipment
£000’s £000's £000's £000's £000's

Cisrf

At1January 2015 247 1193 35,239 n659 48,338
Transfer of Assets under - - N,659 (1.659) -
construction to Generation assets

Reclassification of assets 45 {45) - - -
Additions 137 120 18,349 - 18,606
Disposals - (393) - - (393)

At 31 December 2015 429 875 65,247 - 66,55

At Januvary 2015 (156) (861) (2,592} (3.609)

Charge for the year ng) (57) (2,076) - (2,351)
Disposals - 393 - - 393

At 31 December 2015 {274} {625) {4,668) (5,567)

At 1January 2015 9 332 32,647 0,659 44,729

At 31 December 2015 155 250 60,579 - 60,984
Consolidated Leasehold Furniture, Generation Assets under Total
Year ended 31 December 2014 improvements fittings & assets construction
equipment

£000's £000's £000's £000's
At 1January 2014 212 a80 11,733 9,449 22,374
Transfer of Assets under 9,449 (9.449) -
construction to Generation assets
Additions 35 213 14 057 Nn,659 25964

At 31 December 2014 247 1193 35,239 1,659 48,338

PAGHM e BFato dlet t..n re:iciﬁi.i w5 ) ) I )
At 1 Januvary 2014 {103} (672) (1.487) - (2.262)

Charge for the year (53) (189) (L105) - (1347)

At 31 December 2014 {156) {(861) {2,592) - (3609)

Rk sl g ) .
At 1january 2014 109 308 10 246 9,449 20,112
At 31 December 2014 91 332 32,647 1,659 44,729

The Generation assets relate to electrncity generating assets (wind turbines, sotar panels and ancillaries)
Those assets held within the company's subsidiaries Good Energy Delabole Wind Farm Limited, Good Energy
Hampole Wind Farm Limited, Goad Energy Woolbridge Solar Park Limited, Good Energy Creathorne Solar
Park Limited, Good Energy Rook Waood Solar Park Limited, Good Energy Carloggas Solar Park Limited, Good
Energy Lower End Solar Park Limited and Good Energy Cross Roads Solar Park Limited have been pledged as
security against bank and other loan liabilities There 1s no charge against the assets held within Good Energy
Qaklands Plantation Solar Park Limited
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15 Intangible Assets

Consclidated Power supply Software Website Goodwill
Year ended 31 December 2015 Licences Licences development

costs
£000's £000's £000’s £000's £000’s

At January 2015 180 3868 132 1,446 5,626

Additions - 492 - - 492
Oisposals - (1.009) {(123) - (1,132)
At 31 December 2015 180 3,351 9 1,446 4,986

Charge for the year - (705) - (705)
Disposals - 1,009 123 - 1132
At 31 December 2015 - (1,660) () - (1,669)

1446 3,530

At1January 2015 180 1,904
At 31 December 2015 180 1,691 - 1,446 3,317

Consolidated Power Software Website Goodwill
Year ended 31 December 2014 supply Licences development

Licences costs
L000's £000's

uary 2014 180 3,249 132 1,446 5007

At 1 Jan

Additions - 619 - - 619
At 31 December 2014 180 3,868 132 1,446 5626

4]

At1lJanvary 2014 - {1400} (129) - (1.529)
Charge for the year - (564) (3) - (567)
At 31 December 2014 - {1,964) (132) - (2,096)

At January 2014 180 1,849 3 1446 3,478
At 31December 2014 180 1,904 - 1,446 3,530
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15 Intangible Assets (continued)
All amortisation amounts are included withun administration expenses

Goodwill of £1.446,453 (2014 £1,446,453) comprises £1 060,996 {2014 £1,060,996) arising from the original
acquisition of Good Energy Limited, and £385,457 (2014 £385,457) from the original acquisition of the wind
farm at Delabole

The carrying vatues of indefinite life assets included In Intangible assets are goocdwill of £1,446,453 (2014
£1,446,453) and Power Supply Licence of £180,000 (2014 £180,000) which relates to the subsidiary, Good
Energy Limited In arnving at the conclusion that these assets have an indefinite life, management considers the
fact that the Group 1s a profitable business and expects to hold and support these assets for an indefinite penod

Animpairment review 1S undertaken annually or more frequently, using value In use calculations, based
on pre tax cash flow projecticns over a five year period approved by management and discounted at
appropriate rates

The result of this review was that no impalrment I1s required in respect of the carrying values of the indefinite
life assets The key assurmptions for value In use are as follows

Value In use assumptions 2015 2014
Gross margin* 20%-30% 26%
Growth rate beyond five year plan 2% 2%
Pre tax discount rate N% N%

*annual margins have been modelled in the five year cashflow at varying levels

Based on these assumptions the Directors consider there to be significant headroom and the assumptions
accordingly are not sensitive
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16a Investments and Subsidiaries

Parent Company Shares in Group Loans to Group
Year ended 31 December 2015 undertakings undertakings Total

£000's £000's £000's

(3 13 s il g

At January 2015 4,646 25,295 29,941
Additions - 56,555 56,555
Provisions - (6,000) {6,000)
Repayments - {45,290) {45,290)
At 31 December 2015 4,646 30,560 35,206

A provision has been recorded against the intercompany loan receivable from Good Energy Generation
Limited This has no impact on the consolidated results of the Group

Parent Company Shares In Group Loans to Group
Year ended 31 December 2014 undertakings undertakings

£000's £000's

oty

At January 2014 9,081 18,647 27,728

Intra-group share transfers (4,435) 4,435 -
Additions - 635,763 65,763
Repayments - (63,550) (63.550)
At 31 December 2014 4,646 25,295 29,941
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16a Investments and Substdianes (continued)

The Group had the following subsidiaries at 31 December 2015

Country of Proportion of ordinary Nature of business

incorporation and shares directly held
place of business by Parent

supply of renewably
sourced electnaity and FIT

Good Energy Limited UK 100% admmnistration
Good Energy Gas Limited UK 100% supply of gas

an investor tn potential new
Good Energy Generation Limited UK 100% generattion sites
Good Energy Generation Holding holding company for a
Company No 1 Ltmited UK 100% generating asset sub group

holding company for
Good Energy Generatlon Assets generating assets
No 1 Limited* UK 100% subsidiaries
Good Energy Hampole Windfarm generation of electric power
Limited* UK 100%0 by wind turbine machinery
Good Energy Woolbndge Solar generation of electric power
Park Limited* UK 100% by solar panels
Good Energy Creathorne Solar generation of electric power
Park Limited* UK 100% by solar panels
Good Energy Rook Wood Solar generation of electric power
Park Lmited* UK 100% by solar panels
Good Energy Cartoggas Solar generation of electric power
Park Limited* UK 100% by solar panels
Good Energy Lower End Solar generation of electrnc power
Park Limited* UK 10C% by solar panels
Good Energy Cross Roads generation of electric power
Plantation Solar Park Lmited* UK 100% by solar panels
Good Energy Delabole Wind generation of electric power
Farm Lirmited UK 100% by wind turbine machinery
Good Energy Cedar Windfarm development of an energy
Lirmuted UK 85% generating asset
Good Energy Lanyon Solar Park development of an energy
Limited UK 100% generating asset
Good Energy Mapperton Solar development of an energy
Park Limited UK 100% generating asset
Good Energy Brynwhilach Solar development of an energy
Park Limited UK 100% generating asset
Good Energy Qaklands develepment of an energy
Plantation Solar Park Limited UK 100% generating asset
Good Energy Tidal Limited UK 100% investment holding company
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16a Investments and Subsidiaries (continued) =
Good Energy Development (No 1) development of an energy
Limited UK 100% generating asset
Good Energy Development development of an energy
(No 2) Limited UK 100% generating asset
Good Energy Development development of an energy
(No 3) Limited UK 100% generating asset
Good Energy Development development of an energy
(No 4) Limited UK 100% generating asset
Good Energy Development development of an energy
(No 5) Limited UK 100% generating asset
Good Energy Development development of an energy
(No 6) Limited UK 100% generating asset
Good Energy Development development of an energy
(No7) Limited UK 100% generating asset o
Good Energy Development development of an energy ﬁ
(No 8) Limited UK 100% generating asset g
Good Energy Development development of an energy -
(No 9) Limited UK 100% generating asset §
Good Energy Developrment development of an energy =
(N 10} Limited UK 100% generating asset
Good Energy Development development of an energy
(No12) Limited UK 100% generating asset
Good Energy Development development of an energy
(No 14) Limited UK 100% generating asset
Good Energy Development development of an energy
(No15) Limited UK 100% generating asset
Good Energy Development development of an energy
{No16) Limited UK 100% generating asset
Good Energy Development developrment of an energy
{No 17) Limited UK 100% generating asset
tlangyfelach Community Solar development of an energy
FarmCIC UK 100% generating asset
Worminster Down Somerset developrnent of an energy %“
Community Solar FarmC i C UK 100% generating asset o
Good Energy Development development of an energy S'
{No 20) Limited UK 100% generating asset E
Good Energy Development development of an energy ;-Eé
{No 21) Limited UK 100% generating asset rab
Good Energy Development development of an energy ?g
{No 22} Limited UK W00% generating asset
Good Energy Development development of an energy
{No 23) Limited UK 100% generating asset
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16a. Investments and Subsidtanes (continued)

Good Energy Development

davelopment of an energy

{No.24) Limited UK 100% generating asset

Good Energy Developrment development of an energy
(No 25) Limited UK 100% generating asset

Good Energy Development development of an energy
{No 26) Limited UK 100% generating asset

Good Energy Development development of an energy
(No 27) Lirmited UK 100% generating asset

Good Energy Development development of an energy
{No 28) Limited UK 100% generating asset

Good Energy Development development of an energy
{No 29) Limited UK 100% generating asset

Good Energy Daevelopment development of an energy
{No 30) Limited UK 100% generating asset
Homegrown Electncity Limited UK 100% dormant

* Entities indirectly owned by Good Energy Group PLC

The subsidianes above have all been included in the consolidated financial statements

16b Available-for-sale Financial Assets

Consolidated Available-for-sale
Year ended 31 December 2015 financiat assets
£000's
Clnsti s NIng | . R
At 1 January 2015 500
Additions -
At 31 December 2015 500

Available-for-sale financial assets comprise £500,000 (2014 £500,000) of unlisted securities denomnated
in sterling
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17 Inventories

Parent Company Consolidated

2015 2014 2015 2014

£000's £000's £000’s £000's

Renewable Obligation Certificates - - 2,426 1,787
Levy Exemption Certificates - - o977 -
Generation development sites - - 6,079 4,679
Total - - 9,482 6 466

As at 31 December 2015 there were Renewable Obligation Certificates (ROCs) of £537265 (2014 £896,223)
included in the above amount that were unissued for generation that had already taken place and therefore

these ROCs were not availabte for sale before the end of the financlal year

As at 31 December 2015 there were Levy Exemption Certificates {LECs) of £977001 (2014 mil)
above amount

included in the

Costs shown in respect of Generation development sites are for on-going projects to secure development
nghts and planning permission to establish power generation units on a number of different sites The
cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in *cost of sales’ amounted to £147.416 (2014

£4 663,330) At 31 December 2015, an impairment of £1,041,077 (2014 £742138) had been m

ade against

these sltes resulting in an expense of £298,939 (2014 net credit of £108,000) whichis included in ‘cost

of sales’
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18 Trade and Other Recevables

Parent Company Consolidated

2015 2014 2015 2014

£000's £000's £000's £000's

Gross trade receivables 16 - 1,444 10,251
Provision for impairment/non-payment of trade receivables - - {2,131) (1424)

Net trade recevables 16 - 9,313 8827

Prepayments & 6 1,610 Q00

Inter-company receivabies - 347 - -

Other taxation - 12 8675 554

Total 22 365 1,598 10,281

The Group has a provision in place to set aside an allowance to cover potential impairment and non-payment
of trade recelvables Those debts which are neither past due nor impaired are considered to be good and are
expected to be recoverable Some trade receivables are with customers who do not have externally available
credit ratings

The movements on the provision for impairment and non-payment of trade receivables is shown betow

Movement on the provision for impalrment and non-payment of 2015 2014
trade receivables £000's £000's
Balance at 1 January L424 864
Increase In altowance for impairrment/non-payment 1,135 624
Impairment/non-payment losses recognised (428) (64)
dalance at 31 December 2,131 1424
Ageing analysis of trade recelvables past due but not impalred 2015 2014
£000's £000's
Current and not past due 6,636 Zn7
1to 2 months T 243
2 to 3 months 793 267
Over 3months 1,813 1,200
Total 9,313 8827

Trade receivables past due but not impaired relate entirely to a number of independent customers for whom
there 1s no recent history of default

Trade and other receivables are all financial assets designated as loans and recewvables
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19 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Parent Company Consolidated

2015 2014 2015 2014

£000’'s £000's £000's £000's

Cash at bank and in hand 234 509 1,956 12,354
Short-term bank deposits - - 1,8M 671
Secunty deposits - - 224 678
Total 234 509 4,75) 13,703

As part of the bank loan agreements, the lenders require a minimum cash balance to be held in separate
reserve accounts At the end of the year the total amount was £1722 653 (2014 £670717) which s Included
in short-term bank deposits in 2015 Inctuded within cash at bank and in hand for both the parent company
and the consolidated position s £139,680 (2014 £415,434) 1n respect of monies held by the Good Energy
Employee Benefits Trust The credit quality of cash and cash equivalents can be assessed by reference to
external credit ratings as follows -

Parent Company Consolidated

2015 2014 2015 2014

£000's £000's £000's £000's

Al- 140 415 140 415
A+ - - - 103
A - - 3,568 12162
A- - - 450 -
B 94 94 593 1,023
Total 234 509 4,751 13,703

Cash and cash equivalents are all financial assets designated as loans and receivables
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20. Share Capital and Share Premium

Parant Company & Consolldated

Number of Number of Share
authorlsed . pares issued Share  Premium
shares  ndfullypaid  Capital  Account

£000's £000's

At1lJanvary 2014 20,000,000 14,667,896 733 8,077 9.810
Proceeds from shares issued - - - - -
At 31 December 2074 20.000,000 14,667,896 733 5,077 9810
Proceeds from shares issued - 302,784 15 709 724
At 31 December 2015 20,000,000 14,970,680 748 9,786 10,534

In 2015, the company issued 302,784 ordinary shares of 5p each for total consideration of £724,282, resulting
in a share premivm of £709143 This included the 1ssue of 291,137 (2014 nil) shares to the EBT and 2 scrnip
dividend issues In lieu of full year and intenm dividend cash payments (7,556 and 4,081 shares respectively)
There were no share Issues In 2014

Clarke Willmott Trust Corporation Lirmited holds in trust 521,889 (2014 208,863) ordinary shares of the
company for the present and the future beneficiaries of the Good Energy Group Employee Share Option
Scheme These are deducted from equity as shown in the Consolidated and Parent Company Statements of
Changes in Equity During the year the Trust disposed of 197,000 (2014 179,135) shares as a result of options
exercised and acguired 493,137 (2014 nil) shares

The Directors recommend a final dividend of 2 3p per share (2014 2 3p) subject to shareholder approval at
the Company’s AGM
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21. Defarred Taxation

The provision for deferred taxation is made up as follows

Consolldated 2015 2014
£000's £000's
At January 15 738
Credited to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 401 (412)
Credited to equity 151 (3n)
At 31 December 567 15
2015 2014
£000's £000's
Deferred tax asset to be recovered after more than 12 months (142) (300)
Deferred tax asset to be recovered within 12 months (186) (376)
Sub total-deferred tax assets (328) (676)
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after more than 12 months 895 691
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled within 12 months - -
Sub total-deferred tax liabilities 895 691
Total net deferred tax 567 15
Deferred tax assets 2015 2014
£000's £000's
On short term timing cifferences 186 376
Losses 142 300
Total 328 676

Deferred tax Habllities 2015 2014
£000’s £000's
Cn accelerated capital allowances 895 697

Accelerated Short-term

capital timing

allowances  differences Losses Total
Deferred tax assets/(liabilitles) £000's £000's £000's £000's
At1lJanuary 2014 (830) 92 - (738)
Credited to income statement 152 (40) 300 412
Credited to equity - 3n - n
At 31 December 2014 (678) 363 300 (15)
Credited to the iIncome statement (277) (26) (158) {401)
Credited to equity - (151) - (1s1)
At 31 December 2015 (895) 186 142 {567}

The Group and company has unutilised management charges of £19,261 (2014 £19 261) resultingina
deferred tax asset which has not been recognised
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22. Borrowings and Other Financial Liabilities

Parent Company Consolldated
2015 2014 2015 2014

£000's £000's £000's £000's

Bank and other borrowings 122 - 5,626 65608

Loans from Group companies 6,389 2,272 - -
Total 6,51 2,272 5,626 6,608

Parent Company Consolldated
2015 2014 2015 2014

E000's £000's £000's £000's

Bank and other borrowings - - 41,265 24,981

Bond 14,646 14,695 14,646 14,695
Total 14,646 14,695 55,911 39.676

The Group has undrawn bank overdraft facilities of £5,000,000 {2014 £5,000,000) as at 31 December 2015
and undrawn revolving credit facilities of £2.882,140 (2014 £6,500,000) Those facilities are secured by
guarantees from Good Energy Limited, Good Energy Gas Limited and other group entities

At 31 Decembeer 2015, £7.681 950 (2014 £8,102,446) of the bank loans relate to the company's substdiary,
Good Energy Delabole Windg Farm Limited and is secured by a mortgage debenture on that company dated
16 January 2010 incorporating a fixed and ftoating charge over all current and future assets of that substdiary
The facility will be repaid from future cash flows ansing from the wind farm of this company

On 7 January 2011, the loan balance was transferred from the build phase to the repayment phase, with
repayments of capltal and interest scheduled bi-annually over 15 years

As part of the facility Good Energy Delabole Wind Farm Limited entered into a floating rate to fixed rate
Interest swap They were entered Into at the same time and In contemplation of one another, have the same
counter-party, relate to the same nsk and amortise concurrently Given these circumstances and the fact that
there 1s no economic need or substantive business purpose for structunng the transactions separately that
could not also have been accomplished in a single transaction these instruments are treated as one fixed rate
loan instrument in accordance with IAS 39 The fixed rate interest 1s payable at an annual rate of 715%

At 31 December 2015, £37,859,777, Inclusive of £659,777 of accrued interest (2014 £18 799,264 inclusive of
£49,264 of accrued interest) of the bank loans relate to the company's subsidiary, Good Energy Generation
Assets No 1Limited The loan (s secured by a mortgage debenture on that company and its subsidiaries
dated 17 December 2014 incorporating charges over the shares of that company and those of its subsidiaries
The facility will be repaid from future cash flows ansing from the subslidiaries of that company with
repayments of caplitat and interest scheduled quarterty over a period of 18 years commencing 17 December
2014 Interest is payable at 6 85% and the outstanding principal balance 1s partially exposed if annual RPI
inflation exceeds 3% Costs incurred inraising finance were £2,627,109 (204 £1,393,313) and are being
amortised over the life of the loan tin accordance with IAS39 The company had drawndown £37.300,000 of
the £53,500,000 loan facility as at 31 December 2015
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22 Borrowings and Other Financial Liabilities (continued}

On 2 October 2013 Good Energy Group launched a corporate bond which closed on 24 October 2013 with
subscrptions having reached the maximum target of £15,000,000 The bond was 1ssued to bondholders on
22 November 2013 with interest scheduled bi-annually The coupon rateis 7 25% or 750% for bondholders
that are customers of the Group Capital repayment of the bond Is payable following notice being recerved
from the bondholder no earlier than 4 years from inception The total costs of 1Issue were £770,879 which are
being amoertised over the life of the bond  As at 31 December 2015 the amortisation recognised in *finance

costs' totalled £165 982 (2014 £76 424)

Parent Company

Inter-company
loan

£000's

Qi ]

Due less than 1 year 6,389

Total
EOQO's

122 6,511
Due between 1and 5 years - 14,646 14,646
Due miore than 5 years - - -
Total 6,389 14,768 21,157

Parent Company Inter-company

loan

E£000's

Due less than 1 year 2,272

Bond Total
£000's EOQO’s _

- 2,272

Due between 1 and 5 years - 14,695 14,695
Due more than S years - - -
Total 2,272 14,695 16,967
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22 Borrowings and Other Financial Liabilities {continued)

Bank and

other
Consolidated borrowings Total
£000's £0600's
Due less than 1 year 5,626 - 5,626
Due between 1 and 5 years 8,802 14,646 23,448
Due more than 5 years 32,463 - 32,463
Total 46,89 14,646 61,537

Bank and

other
Consolidated borrowings Total
£000's £000's
Due less than 1 year 6,608 - 6,608
Due between 1and 5 years 8287 14,695 22,982
Due more than 5 years 16,694 - 16,694
Total 31,589 14,695 46 284

The falr values of borrowings have been calculated taking into account the interest rate nsk inherent in the
loans and the bond The fair value estimates and carrying values of borrowings (excluding 1ssue costs) in

place at 31 December 2015 are

2015 2015 2014 2014
Carrying Carrying

Fair value value  Fairvalve value
£000s £000s £000s £000s

Good Energy Delabote Wind farm Ltd 7,759 7,682 8,102 8,102

Good Energy Generation Assets No 1 Limited 37,553 37,300 18,784 18,750
Carparate bond 15,114 14,965 14,725 15,000

Borrowings are designated as other financial labilities held at amortised cost




O

GoodEner
GroupPLC d

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

23 Trade and Other Payables

Parent Company Consolidated

2015 2014 2015 2014

£000's £00C's £000's £000's

Trade payables 68 34 3,439 4,669
Accruals and deferred income 64 60 10,655 8302
Social secunty and other taxes - - 35 238
Other payables - - 69 1867
Total 132 94 14,514 15,076

Trade and other payables are designated as other financiai labilities held at amortised cost

24 Dividends

Amounts recognised as distributions to shareholders in the year (based on the number of shares inissue at
the record date)

Consolidated 2015 20714
£000’s £000's
Final dividend prior year of 2 30p per share (2014 2 30p) 344 337
{nterim dividend current year of 1 00p per share (2014 100np) 150 147
Sub-total 404 484
Dividends waived {16) (i2)
Total 478 472

Dividends waived represent dividends that would accrue on shares held by the Good Energy Group Employee
Benefits Trust were they not held by the Trust

A final dvidend of 2 3p per share was proposed on 18 March 2016, subject to shareholder approval at the
company'’s AGM

Of the total dividend distributed for the year, £27,009 (2014 nil) was paid in the form of scrip dividends with
the balance of £451998 (2014 £471,782) settled in cash
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25 Cash Generated from Operations

Reconcitiation of net Income to net cash provided by operating activities

Parent Company Consolidated

2015 2014 2015 2014

£000's £000's £000's £000's

Profit before Income tax 1,144 2772 128 1,288
Depreciation - - 2,351 1347
Amortisation 1 4 705 567
Share based payments - - 51 30

Provision against investments in and loans to

subsidiaries 6,000 - - _
Dividend income from subsidiaries (B.000) - - -

Finance (Income)/costs - net (552) (208) 4,106 2,503

AN S SR VG RN E DRSBTS Y SR (1A £

QAT BT S H1E SR T LY SR X FILY P B SRS T B SIO T

OHE VIR

Inventories - - (3,872) (1,908)
Trade and other recelvables 165 120 {(1,318) {2,329}
Trade and other payables 38 (1,264) (561) 2,199
Cash (outflow)/inflow from operations {1,204) 1424 1,590 3697
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26 Share Based Payments

In order to retain the services of key employees and to incentivise thelr performance, the Parent Company
operates the Good Energy Emplayee Share Option Scheme under which certain employees of the Group
are granted options to acquire Ordinary 5p Shares at future dates Costs in respect of these options of
£5,428 {2014 £30,040) are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income As at 31
December 2015 the following options had been Issued

Weighted average Total exercise

Number of options exarcise price consideration

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

(Number) (Number) (£) (£} £000's £000's

Qutstanding at beginming of year 1,494,898 2048 514 1.03 103 1,536 2n0

Granted 552,172 25,000 1.85 125 1,022 31
Exercised (197,000} (179 135) 1.01 02 {199) (130)
Cancelled/surrendered {310,000) (399,481 125 119 (388) (475)

Qutstanding at the end of year 1,540,070 1494 898 1.28 103 1,97 1536

In order to partally fulfil the options granted, 521,989 (2014 208,863) shares representing approximately
42% (2014 18%) of the options gutstanding have already been Issued and held by Clarke Willmott Trust
Corparation Limited as the Trustee of the Good Energy Group Employee Benefits Trust Dividends have been
waived on these shares

The options expire at various dates up to September 2025 Share options ocutstanding at the end of the year
have the following expiry date and exercise price

Grant-vast Explry year Exercise price In £ per Share options
share options {thousands)

2015 2014

2003-2006 2014 075 - 45
2004-2007 2019 075 35 120
2005-2008 2015 oeo - 160
2006-2009 2016 075 - N4
2007-2010 207 075 - 20
2012-2015 2022 050 189 189
2012-2015 2022 115 79 328
2013-2016 2023 125 289 554
2014-2017 2024 125 - 25
2015-2018 2025 0 102 -
20152018 2025 225 100 -
2015-2018 2025 229 200 -
2015-2018 2025 227 150 -
1,244 1,495

The welghted average fair value of options granted during the year determined using the Black-Scholes
valuation model was £0 48 per option The significant inputs into the model were weighted average share
price of £2 24 at the grant date, exercise price shown above, volatility of 14%, dividend yield of 3%, an
expected option life of three years and an annual nisk-free interest rate of 0 3% The volatility measured at
the standard deviation of continuously compounded share returns is based on statistical analysis of daily
share prices over the last year See note 8 for the total expense recognised in the iIncome statement for share
options granted to Directors and employees
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27 Pensions

The Group operates a defined contributions penston scheme The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently admirustered fund The pension cost represents contributions
payable by the Group to the fund and amounted to £343,294 (2014 £333,644)

Coentributions totalling £42,060 (2014 £41,142) were payable to the fund at the end of the financial year and
are Included in other payables

The Group has no further pension hability either reallsed or contingent and In ine with the Group's
environmental position all employer contributions are invested within a suitable fund

28 Commitments

28.1 Operating Lease Commmitments

The future aggregate minfmum lease payments are as follows

Land and Bulldings 2015 2014
£000's £000%s
Leases as lessee:
Less than one year 341 39}
Between one and five years 1,184 769
Mare than five years 5,583 4,050
Total 8,108 5210
Other operating leases 2015 2014
£000's £000's
Leases as lessee
Less than one year & 6
Between one and five years 12 18
More than five years - -
Total 18 24

28 2 Capital Commitments

At 31 December 2015, the total capital commitments amount 1 £418,134 (2004 £2,978,206) Of this
£418,134 (2014 £2,978,206) retated to contracts agreed on solar generation projects

The figure for solar generation projects represents the maximum llabllity assurming sites continue
In development
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20, Related Party Transactions

The Group mamtains processes to identify related party transactions which include ensuring that all
meetings of the Board of Directors begin with a declaration of interest In the matters arising When related
party transactions are identifled steps are taken to ensure they are transparent and contracted onanarm s
length basis Depencdent on the perceived nsk and materiality of the transaction, these steps may include
forming an independent sub-committee of the board to consider the transactlon and requesting that the
Group's nominated advisor reviews the contractual terms

The company's significant subslidiary undertakings, including the name and proportion of ownership interest
for each, are disclosed in note 16 Transactions between subsidianes and between the company and its
subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation Dunng the year the company had inter-company balances with
its subsidiarnies Interest s charged on these balances at either 2 5% above the Bank of England base rate
orat 8 85% The higher rate 1s charged on inter-company loans drawing on the GCF loan which carnies an
external rate of interest of 6 85% Detalls of the amounts cutstanding and received durning the year on inter-
company loans are contained In note 16a

In January 2010 Good Energy Delabole Wind Farm Limited, a subsidiary company, entered into an agreement
with Windelectnc Management Limited, a company in which Martin Edwards (a director of the company) has
a controlling interest, to provide site management for the new wind farm at Celabole The amount payable
each year s £75,000 index inked The amount payable under this agreement during the current year was
£83,647 (2014 £82,729) No amounts were outstanding at the end of the financial year (2014 £nil)

In January 2010, Good Energy Delabole Wind Farm Limited entered into a 25 year lease with Martin Edwards
and other parties in respect of the land which some of the new turbines occupy For the first 10 years of
operation the rent will be the higher of an annual base rent of £50,240 or 3 25% of gross iIncome from the
wind farm and from the 10th anniversary onwards it will be 4 5% of gross Income from the wind farm

The amount payable under this agreement during the current year was £76,649 (2014 £70 268) Of these
figures no amounts were outstanding at the end of the financial year {2014 £mil)

In 2012 the Group entered in to an agreement in connection with generatlon development activities

with Shire Oak Energy Limited, a company wholly owned by Mark Shorrock who 1s the husband of Jullet
Davenport Dunng 2015, a payment of £500,000 (2014 £1,806,211) was made to Shire Qak under the terms
of the contract A final payment capped at £150 000 1s due on the successful energisation of one remamning
solar farm under the agreement

In April 2014, Good Energy Tidal Lagoon Limited. a subsidiary of the Group, made a £500,000 investment
into Tidal Lagoon {Swansea Bay) plc  Mark Shorrock (the husband of Juliet Davenport} s employed asits
Chief Executive

The investment s structured with an option to purchase up to 10% of the power output from the Tidal
Lagoon project at market rates once completed
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30. Subsequent Events

None

3. Subsidiary Undertakings Exempt From Audit

Good Energy Group PLC has provided the necessary parental guarantees under section 479A of the
Companies Act 2006, to enable the following companies exemption from audIt

Good Energy Pengelly Cluster Solar Park (008)
Limited

Good Energy Lanyon Solar Park (0O1) Limited
Good Energy Development (No 1) Limited
Good Energy Development (No 3) Limited
Good Energy Development (No 4) Limited
Good Energy Development {No 5) Limited
Good Energy Development (No 6) Limited
Good Energy Development (No 8) Limited
Good Energy Development (No 9) Limited
Good Energy Development (No 10) Limited
Good Energy Development (No 12} Limited

32 Generation assets —technical data
Wind farms

Hampole, South Yorkshire
Turbine manufacturer Senvion
No of turbines 4

Installed capacity 8 2MW
Turbine power cutput 2 05 MW

Delabole, Cornwall

Turbine manufacturer Enercon
No of turbines 4

Installed capacity 9 2MW
Turbine power output 2 3 MW

Solar farms

Woolbridge, Dorset
Solar modules Yingli
Nominal capacity DC 4,996 kWp

Creathorne, Cornwall
Solar modules Yingl
Nominal capacity DC 1,841 kWp

Good Energy Devetlopment { No14) Limited
Good Energy Development { No 15) Limited
Good Energy Development (No 16) Limited
Good Energy Development {(No 17) Lirmited
Good Energy Development (No 18) Limited
Good Energy Development (No 19) Limited
Good Energy Development (No 20) Limited
Good Energy Development { No 21) Limited /
Good Energy Development (No 22) Lirmited
Good Energy Oevelopment (No 24) Limited
Good Energy Development {No 30) Limited

Solar farms {continued)

Rook Wood, Wiltshire
Solar modules ReneSola
Nominal capacity DC 4,981 kWp

Lower End, Wiltshire
Solar modules linko Solar
Nominal capacity DC 4,999 kWp

Crossroads, Dorset
Solar modules Jinko Solar
Nominat capacity DC 4,999 kwWp

Carloggas, Cornwall
Solar medules ReneSola
Nominal capacity DC 8,304 kWp

Oaklands, Dorset
Solar modutes REC
Nominal capacity DC 4,992 kWp
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